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Vinyl Chemicals (India) Ltd.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Your Directors present the Thirty Fifth Annual Report and the Audited Financial Statements for the year 
ended 31st March, 2021.

Financial Results:
									          (` in Lacs)

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Profit before Interest, Depreciation and Tax 	 1529 	 1004
Less: Interest & other finance costs 	 5 	 5
	  (Depreciation 	 * 	 *
Profit before Taxation 	 1524 	 999
Less: Provision for Current Taxation 	 385 	 255
(Add)/Less: Provision for Deferred Tax 	 4 	 (2)
Profit for the year 	 1135 	 746
(Add)/Less: Other Comprehensive Income 	 1 	 (4)
Total Comprehensive Income 	 1134 	 742
Add: Profit Brought Forward from Previous Year 	 4704 	 4492
Opening balance of Retained Earnings 	 5838 	 5234
Appropriations:
Dividend on Equity Shares 	 #440 	 @440
Tax on Dividend - 	 @90
Transfer to General Reserve 	 $ 	 $
Total 	 440 	 530
Closing balance of Retained Earnings 	 5398 	 4704

* 	 less than ` 1 lac
# 	 relates to Dividend for F.Y. 2019-2020
@ 	relates to Dividend for F.Y. 2018-2019
$ 	 It is proposed not to transfer any amount to the General Reserve

Dividend:
Out of Current Year’s profit, the Directors recommend payment of dividend of ` 3.75 per equity share of  
` 1 each (previous year ` 2.40 per equity share) amounting to ` 6,87,64,166 (previous year ` 4,40,09,066)
on 1,83,37,111 equity shares of ` 1 each). The dividend shall be subject to deduction of income tax at source.

Performance:
a.	 The company’s current business is in Chemicals – which is trading mainly in Vinyl Acetate Monomer.

b.	 During the year, the sales turnover from Trading activity was ` 39,534 lacs.

c.	� During the year, the Company earned Net Profit of ` 1,135 lacs as against ` 746 lacs in the previous 
year.

Outlook:
The lockdown like restrictions which were imposed by several State Governments since mid-April 2021 
due to resurgence of Covid-19 pandemic in the country has severely impacted the normal operations of the 
Company. Performance of the Company during the current year will depend on the pandemic situation, the 
prevailing market conditions and fluctuations in exchange rates.
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Directors:
In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company, Shri A.B. Parekh, a Director of the Company, 
retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

The current term of Shri M.B. Parekh as Managing Director is valid till 31st March, 2022. It is proposed to 
re-appoint him as Managing Director for a further period of 5 years from 1st April, 2022, subject to approval 
of Members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

The Company has received declarations from Shri R.M. Gandhi, Smt. Y.J. Mogrelia and  
Shri A.D. Mavinkurve, Independent Directors, that they meet with the criteria of independence as 
prescribed under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (Listing Regulations) and that 
they have registered their names in the Independent Directors’ Databank.

Copy of Annual Return:
The Annual Return of the Company as on 31st March, 2021 is available on the website of the Company  
www.vinylchemicals.com.

Number of Board Meetings:
During the year, the Board of Directors met 4 times. The details of the Board Meetings are given in the 
Corporate Governance Report section of this Annual Report.

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments:
Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are given 
in the Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021.

Related Party Transactions:
All related party transactions that were entered into during the financial year were on an arm’s length basis 
and in the ordinary course of business and were placed before the Audit Committee for approval.

Particulars of arrangements with related parties as referred to in Section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 
for the Financial Year 2020-2021 are given in prescribed Form AOC - 2 which is annexed as Annexure 1.

Disclosure of related party transactions with the promoter(s)/promoter group which individually hold 10% or 
more shareholding of the Company as per Indian Accounting Standards, are set out in Note No. 32 of the 
Financial Statements of the Company.

The policy on related party transactions as recommended by the Audit Committee and as approved by the 
Board is uploaded on the Company’s website www.vinylchemicals.com.

Risk Management:
The Company has a structured Risk Management Plan. The Risk Management process is designed to 
safeguard the organization from various risks through adequate and timely actions.

Corporate Social Responsibility Report and Policy:
The Annual Report on CSR activities as required under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the 
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, as amended, is annexed as Annexure 2.

The CSR Policy of the Company can be accessed on its website www.vinylchemicals.com.

Remuneration Policy:
The Remuneration Policy of the Company is available on its website www.vinylchemicals.com and is annexed 
as Annexure 3. There has been no change in the policy since the last financial year. The remuneration paid 
to the Directors are as per the terms laid out in the Remuneration Policy of the Company.
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Committees of the Board:
The following statutory Committees constituted by the Board function according to their respective roles and 
defined scope:

a.	 Audit Committee

b.	 Nomination and Remuneration Committee

c.	 Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

d.	 Stakeholders Relationship Committee

Details of composition, terms of reference and number of meetings held during the year of the above 
Committees are given in the Corporate Governance Report section of this Annual Report.

All recommendations made by the Audit Committee have been accepted by the Board.

Statutory Auditors:
There are no qualifications, reservations, adverse remarks or disclaimers made in the Auditors’ Report on 
the Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2021.

During the year under review, the Auditors have not reported any matter under Section 143(12) of the 
Companies Act, 2013.

At the 33rd Annual General Meeting of the Company, the Members have appointed M/s Khanna & Panchmia, 
Chartered Accountants, Mumbai as the Statutory Auditors for a second term of five consecutive years 
upto the conclusion of the 38th Annual General Meeting. The Auditors have confirmed that they are not 
disqualified from continuing as Auditors of the Company.

Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures:
The Company has no Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Venture Companies.

Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy:
The Company has established a Vigil Mechanism and adopted a Whistle Blower Policy for Directors and 
employees. The details of the policy are posted on the Company’s website www.vinylchemicals.com.

Secretarial Audit Report:
Pursuant to Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Secretarial Audit Report for the year ended  
31st March, 2021 given by M/s. M.M. Sheth & Co., Practicing Company Secretaries, is annexed as  
Annexure 4. The report is unqualified.

Deposits:
The Company has not accepted any deposit covered under Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013 during 
the year.

Internal Financial Controls:
Adequate internal financial control system and checks are in place commensurate with the size of the 
Company and nature of its business.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement:
As required under the provisions of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, your Directors state that:

•	� in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed 
alongwith proper explanations relating to material departures, if any;

•	� the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of 
the Company as at 31st March, 2021 and of the profits of the Company for the year ended on that date;
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•	� the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of 
the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

•	 the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;
•	� the Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such 

internal financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively and
•	� the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable 

laws and such systems are adequate and operating effectively.
Corporate Governance:
Report on Corporate Governance in accordance with Regulation 34 read with Schedule V of the Listing 
Regulations alongwith a certificate from the Statutory Auditors of the Company is given separately in this 
Annual Report. The requisite certificate from M/s M.M. Sheth & Co., Practising Company Secretaries, is 
attached to the Report on Corporate Governance.
Management Discussion and Analysis Report:
Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under review as stipulated under the Listing 
Regulations is given in a separate section of this Annual Report.
Disclosure under Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014:
The information pursuant to Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules 5(1), 5(2) and 5(3) 
of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 in respect of 
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and employees of the Company are annexed as Annexure 5.
Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo:
The particulars under Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014, to the extent applicable to the Company, are given in the prescribed format which is annexed as 
Annexure 6.
Annual Evaluation by the Board:
The Board of Directors of the Company have carried out evaluation of its own performance, its Committees 
and individual Directors. The result of the evaluation is satisfactory, adequate and meets with the 
requirements of the Company.
Familiarisation Programme:
The Company has put in place a familiarisation programme for all its Directors, including Independent 
Directors and the same is available on the its website www.vinylchemicals.com.
General:
a)	� The Company has not issued Sweat Equity shares and Equity shares with Differential Rights during the 

Financial Year 2020-2021.
b)	 The Company does not have Employees Stock Option Scheme.
c)	� No Significant and Material Orders were passed by the Regulators against the Company during the 

Financial Year 2020-2021.
d)	� The Company has complied with provisions relating to the constitution of Internal Complaints Committee 

under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Work Place (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal)  
Act, 2013 and no complaints were received by the Company during the Financial Year 2020-2021 
under the said Act.

e)	� Apart from the impact of lockdown like restrictions, which were imposed by several State Governments 
due to outbreak of Covid-19 pandemic, which is dealt with elsewhere in this Report, there have been 
no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company after the end of 
financial year till the date of this Report.
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f)	� The Company has complied with the Secretarial Standards issued by Institute of Company Secretaries 
of India on Meetings of Board of Directors and General Meetings.

g)	� The Central Government has not specified maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 for the Company.

Appreciation:
The Directors wish to place on record their appreciation of the contribution made by the employees at all 
levels to the working of the Company. The Directors also wish to place on record their appreciation for the 
shareholders, dealers, customers and banks for their continued support.

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Place	 :	 Mumbai 	 M.B. PAREKH 
Date	 : 	10th May, 2021 	 		  CHAIRMAN & MANAGING DIRECTOR 
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ANNEXURE 1

FORM AOC – 2

[Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2)  
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014]

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related 
parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Act including certain arm’s length transaction 
under third proviso thereto.

1.	 Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis:

	� All contracts/arrangements/transactions entered into during the year ended 31st March, 2021 were at 
arm’s length basis.

2.	 Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm’s length basis:

	 a.	 Name (s) of the related party and nature of relationship:

		  i.	 Pidilite Industries Ltd. (Promoter Company)

		  ii.	 Pidilite Lanka Pvt. Ltd. (Subsidiary of the Promoter Company)

		  iii.	 Pidilite Speciality Chemicals Bangladesh Pvt. Ltd. (Subsidiary of the Promoter Company)

	 b.	 Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions:

		  Sale and supply of goods, products & materials viz. Chemicals

	 c.	 Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transactions:

		  On ongoing basis

	 d.	 Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any:

	�	�  Sale of Chemicals viz. VAM on commercial terms as per prevailing market price as applicable to 
bulk industrial consumers with firm commitment for off-take of materials from time to time. 

		  For the Financial Year 2020-2021, the values of goods sold are as follows:

		  i.	 Pidilite Industries Ltd.								        -	 ` 3,48,46,53,841

		  ii.	 Pidilite Lanka Private Ltd. 							      - 	 ` 40,79,577

		  iii.	 Pidilite Speciality Chemicals Bangladesh Pvt. Ltd. 	 -	 ` 2,10,24,143

	 e.	 Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any:

		  Not Applicable

	 f.	 Amount paid as advances, if any:

		  Not Applicable

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Place	 : Mumbai							        	  M.B. PAREKH
Date	 : 10th May, 2021	 CHAIRMAN & MANAGING DIRECTOR
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ANNEXURE 2

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES

1.	 Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company:

	� The key focus areas of the Company’s CSR Policy are to support various bodies in carrying CSR 
activities in the areas of rural development, education, health care, general semantics etc.

2.	 Composition of CSR Committee: 

Sr. 
No.

Name of Director Designation/Nature of 
Directorship

Number of 
meetings of CSR 
Committee held 
during the year

Number of 
meetings of CSR 

Committee attended 
during the year

1 Shri N. K. Parekh Non-Executive Director 2 2
2 Shri M.B. Parekh Chairman & Managing Director 2 2
3 Shri R.M. Gandhi Independent Director 2 2
4 Smt. Y.J. Mogrelia Independent Director 2 2

3.	� Web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the 
Board are disclosed on the website of the Company:

	 http://www.vinylchemicals.com/policies.php

4.	� Details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 
of the Companies (CSR Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable:

	 Not Applicable

5.	� Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies 
(CSR Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial year, if any: 

	 Nil

6.	 Average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5): 

	 ` 1,139.08 lacs

7.	 (a)	 Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): 

		  ` 22.78 lacs

	 (b)	� Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial 
years: 

		  Nil

	 (c)	 Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: 

		  Nil

	 (d)	 Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b+7c):

		  ` 22.78 lacs
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8.	 (a)	 CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Total Amount 
spent for the 

Financial 
Year 2020-21 

(` in Lacs)

Amount Unspent (`)
Total Amount transferred 
to Unspent CSR Account 

as per Section 135(6)

Amount transferred to any fund  
specified under Schedule VII as per second  

proviso to Section 135(5)
Amount (`) Date of 

transfer
Name of the 

Fund
Amount (`) Date of 

transfer
25.00 - - - - -

	 (b)	 Details of CSR amount spent against Ongoing projects for the financial year:

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11
Sr.
No.

Name of the 
Project

Items from 
the list of 
activities 

in 
Schedule 
VII of the 

Act

Local 
area
(Yes/
No)

Location of Project Project 
Duration
(in years)

Amount 
allocated 

for the 
project 

(` in lacs)

Amount 
spent in 
current 

Financial 
Year 
(` in 
lacs)

Amount 
transferred 

to
Unspent 

CSR
Account for 

the
project as 

per
Section 
135(6) 

(` in lacs)

Mode of 
implementation

Direct
(Yes/No)

Mode of 
Implementation through 

Implementing agency

State District

Name CSR Regn. No.

1 a. Agriculture
& Horticulture

b. Women Self
Help Group

iv, x

iii, x

No

No

Gujarat

Gujarat

Bhavnagar

Bhavnagar

3

3

*
*

 25.00 _ No Trivenikalyan 
Foundation

CSR00000487

TOTAL *  25.00 _

*	� The Company has made a contribution of ` 25.00 lacs to Trivenikalyan Foundation, a registered 
public trust (the Implementing Agency) for CSR purposes. The projects are being implemented by the 
Implementing Agency jointly with other companies.

	 (c)	 Details of CSR amount spent against other than Ongoing projects for the financial year: 

 		  Nil

	 (d)	 Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: 

		  Nil

	 (e)	 Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: 

		  Not Applicable

	 (f)	 Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e): 

		  ` 25.00 lacs

	 (g)	 Excess amount for set off, if any:

Sr. No Particulars Amount
 (` in lacs)

i. 2% of average net profits of the Company as per section 135(5) 22.78
ii. Total amount spent for the Financial Year 25.00
iii. Excess amount spent for the Financial Year [(ii)-(i)] 2.22
iv. Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the 

previous financial years, if any
_

v. Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)] 2.22
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9	 (a)	 Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:

		  Nil

	 (b)	� Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for Ongoing projects of the preceding 
financial year(s):

		  Nil

10.	� In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so 
created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year:

	 Nil

11.	� Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit 
as per section 135(5): 

	 Not Applicable

 	 M.B. PAREKH 	 N.K. PAREKH
	 (CHAIRMAN & MANAGING DIRECTOR)	 (CHAIRMAN OF THE CSR COMMITTEE)
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ANENEXURE 3

REMUNERATION POLICY

1.	� The Company while deciding the remuneration package of the Directors and senior management 
members takes into consideration the nature of responsibility of the position, employment scenario and 
remuneration package of the managerial talent of other comparable companies.

2.	 The fixed component of the remuneration package includes perquisites and allowances.

3.	 Remuneration Policy for Managing Director/Executive Director(s) (if any):

	 a)	� The remuneration paid to the Managing Director/Executive Director(s) of the Company is approved 
by the Board of Directors on the recommendations of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee.

	 b)	� Remuneration of the Managing Director consists of commission based on the net profits of the 
Company for each financial year. The commission amount is linked to the net profit of the Company 
for each financial year computed as per the Companies Act, 2013.

	 c)	� Remuneration of Executive Directors: None at present. However, if appointed in future, the 
remuneration shall consist of a fixed component and/or commission based on the net profits of the 
Company for each financial year computed as per the Companies Act, 2013.

4.	 Remuneration Policy for Non-Executive Directors:

	� Non-Executive Directors on the Company’s Board of Directors add substantial value to the Company 
through their contribution to the Management of the Company. In addition they also play an appropriate 
control role. For best utilization of the expertise of the Non-Executive Directors, the Company has 
constituted certain Committees of the Board.

	 The following remuneration is payable to Non-Executive Directors:

S. No. Particulars Remuneration
1. Commission Based on the Company’s performance and at a rate 

not exceeding 1% p.a. of the net profits of the Company 
which shall be distributed uniformly among all the Non-
Executive Directors of the Company

2. Sitting Fees for attending Board 
Meetings and Committee Meetings

As approved by the Board of Directors from time to 
time within the overall limits as prescribed by the 
Companies Act, 2013

5.	 Remuneration Policy for Senior Managers:

	 a)	� Annual increase in the fixed remuneration is based on defined criteria and subject to review 
by the HR Department & Managing Director and subject to the approval by the Nomination & 
Remuneration Committee, wherever required.

	 b)	� One of the components of the remuneration package may be variable pay linked to defined 
performance parameters.

	 c)	� Variable pay, if any, may be based on internally developed detailed performance related matrix 
which is verified by the Accounts and HR Departments.
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ANNEXURE 4 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2021

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment 
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,2014]

To,

The Members,
Vinyl Chemicals (India) Limited,
Regent Chambers, 7th Floor,
208, Nariman Point, Mumbai-400021

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence 
to good corporate practices by Vinyl Chemicals (India) Limited (hereinafter called the Company). 
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the 
corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

We have conducted online verification of records, as facilitated by the Company, due to Covid-19 pandemic 
and subsequent lockdown situation for the purpose of issuing this Report. 

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and 
other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, 
agents and authorised representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit and considering practical 
difficulties caused by restrictions imposed by the State Government due to Covid-19 pandemic, I hereby 
report that in my opinion, the Company has during the audit period covering the financial year ended on  
31st March, 2021 (Audit Period) complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the 
Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner 
and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by 
the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2021 according to the provisions of:

(i) 	 The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(ii)	  The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;

(iii) 	The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv) 	�Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the 
extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings  
(Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

(v) 	� The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-

	 (a) �	� The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 
Regulations, 2011;

	 (b)	  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,2015;

	 (c) 	� The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2018 (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

	 (d) 	��� The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 
		  (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);
	 (e) 	� The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 

2008 (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);
	 (f) 	� The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 

Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;
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	 (g) 	� The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,2009  
(Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

	 (h) 	� The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018  
(Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

	 (i) 	� The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 

(vi) 	There are no specific laws applicable to the Company, as confirmed by the Company.

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i)	 �Secretarial Standards (SS.1) relating to meetings of Board of Directors & SS.2 relating to General 
Meetings) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 

(ii)	 The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with the Stock Exchanges.

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, 
Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

I further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors,  
Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. Changes in the composition of the Board of Directors 
that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on 
agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further 
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at 
the meeting.

All decisions at board meetings and Committee meetings were carried out unanimously as recorded in the 
minutes of meetings of the Board of Directors or Committee of the Board, as the case may be.

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with 
the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, 
regulations and guidelines.

I further report that during the audit period the Company has following specific events/actions having 
a major bearing on the company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, 
guidelines, standards, etc:

-	 �Special Resolution passed by the Members at the 34th AGM held on 16th September, 2020 for  
re-appointment of Shri N. K. Parekh as Non-Executive Director as required under regulation 17(1A) of 
SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. 

FOR M. M. SHETH & CO.
(Company Secretaries)

M. M. SHETH 
(Prop.)

FCS No. 1455, CP No. 729
PR No.: 1000/2020

UDIN: F001455C000269349

Place	 :	 Mumbai 

Date	 : 	 10th May, 2021

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure-A and forms an integral 
part of this report.
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Annexure-A 

The Members,
Vinyl Chemicals (India) Limited,
Regent Chambers, 7th Floor,
208, Nariman Point, Mumbai-400021

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1)	 �Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2)	 �We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance 
about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis 
to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and 
practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3)	 �We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts 
of the Company.

4)	 �Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, 
rules and regulations and happening of events, etc.

5)	 �The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards 
is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on 
test basis.

6)	 �The Secretarial audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the 
efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

FOR M. M. SHETH & CO.
 (Company Secretaries)

M. M. SHETH 
(Prop.)

FCS No. 1455, CP No. 729
PR No.: 1000/2020

UDIN: F001455C000269349

Place	 :	 Mumbai 

Date	 : 	 10th May, 2021
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ANENEXURE 5

I.	� DISCLOSURE U/S 197(12) AND RULE 5(1) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND 
REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014

1.	� Ratio of remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the employees of the 
company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2021:

Sr. No. Name of Director Total Remuneration 
(` in lacs)

Ratio of Remuneration 
of Director to the Median 

Remuneration
1 Shri M.B. Parekh 79.00 5.6:1
2 Shri N.K. Parekh 3.99 0.3:1
3 Shri R.M. Gandhi 4.38 0.3:1
4 Smt. Y.J. Mogrelia 4.20 0.3:1
5 Shri A.D. Mavinkurve 4.04 0.3:1
6 Shri A.B. Parekh 3.60 0.3:1

2.	� The Percentage increase in remuneration of each Director and Key Managerial Personnel in the 
Financial Year 2020-2021:

Sr. No. Name of Director/KMP Remuneration (` in lacs) Increase/
(Decrease) (%)2020-2021 2019-2020

1 Shri M.B. Parekh 79.00 33.00 139.39
2 Shri N.K. Parekh 3.99 2.55 56.47
3 Shri R.M. Gandhi 4.38 2.51 74.50
4 Smt Y.J. Mogrelia 4.20 2.79 50.54
5 Shri A.D. Mavinkurve 4.04 2.94 37.24
6 Shri A.B. Parekh 3.60 -- --
7 Shri Mahendra Gayatonde (CFO) 31.33 27.13 10.40

3.	 Percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the Financial Year 2020-2021:

Particulars Median Remuneration 
(` in lacs)

Increase (%)

2020-2021 2019-2020
Median remuneration of all employees (per annum) 14.16 12.14 13.80

4.	 The number of permanent employees on the rolls of the company as on 31st March, 2021 were 13.
5.	� Comparison of average percentage increase in the salary of employees other than the Key 

Managerial Personnel (KMP) and the percentage increase in the KMP remuneration:

Particulars Amount (` in lacs) Increase/
Decrease (%)2020-2021 2019-2020

Average salary of all employees (other than KMP) 20.48 19.35 5.82
KMP remuneration 31.33 27.13 10.40

6.	 Affirmation:
	� It is affirmed that the remuneration paid to the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior 

Management is as per the remuneration policy of the Company.
II.	� DISCLOSURE UNDER RULES 5(2) & 5(3) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND 

REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014
	� There were no employees who were in receipt of remuneration at a rate not less than ` 102 lacs per 

annum or ` 8.50 lacs per month (if employed for part of the year).
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 ANNEXURE 6

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN 
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

During the Financial Year 2020-2021, the Company did not have any manufacturing activity. The Company’s 
current business activity is trading in Chemicals. Hence, information as applicable to trading activity is only 
given.

A.	 Conservation of Energy 		  					     - 	 Not Applicable

B.	 Technology Absorption			    			    	 - 	 Not Applicable

C.	 Foreign Exchange Earnings & Outgo:

	 Total Foreign Exchange earned and used:
										          ( ` in Lacs)
Sr. No. Particulars Financial Year 

2020-2021 
Financial Year 

2019-2020 
1. Foreign Exchange earned 1,132.16 1,244.30
2. Foreign Exchange used 39,210.03 32,419.45



35th Annual Report 2020-2021

17

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT
The Company’s current business activity is trading in Chemicals.
Industry Structure and Developments:
Large number of companies are active in trading of chemicals. About 10-12 importers are regularly importing 
Vinyl Acetate Monomer for trading into India.
Opportunities, Threats, Outlook, Risks and Concerns:
The Company is currently engaged mainly in trading of Vinyl Acetate Monomer. The Company has so far 
not deemed it appropriate to add other chemicals to its trading activity.
The price and demand of various chemicals undergo f luctuations. Similarly, there are f luctuations in foreign 
currency rates. Hence, there is an inherent risk in trading activities.
Impact of Covid-19 Pandemic:
The nationwide lockdown which was imposed due to outbreak of Covid-19 pandemic last year had severely 
impacted the Company's trading operations during the first quarter of the Financial Year 2020-2021. As per 
Company’s expectations, the market demand improved in the remaining quarters and the Company was 
able to achieve a modest growth in turnover during the previous year.
However, due to resurgence of the pandemic in the country and subsequent lockdown like restrictions 
imposed by several State Governments since mid-April 2021, the normal operations of the Company were 
severely  impacted. Performance of the Company during the current year will depend on the pandemic 
situation as well as the prevailing market conditions.
Segment-wise Performance:
The Company’s current business activity has only one primary reportable segment, namely trading in 
chemicals.
Internal Control Systems and their Adequacy:
The Company has adequate internal control procedures commensurate with the size and nature of its 
business. The internal control systems provide for policies, guidelines, authorisations and approval 
procedures.
The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors periodically reviews the internal audit reports, significant risk 
area assessment and adequacy of internal controls for ensuring checks and balances. The Company has 
appointed Internal Auditors who regularly check the adequacy and effectiveness of all internal controls and 
suggest improvements.
Financial Performance:
The financial results and performance for the year are elaborated in the Directors’ Report.
Human Resources:
Harmonious relations continued to prevail with the employees. The total number of employees as on  
31st March, 2021 were 13.
Changes in Key Financial Ratios:
The details of changes in Key Financial Ratios are as under:

Sr No. Ratio As on 31.03.2021 As on 31.03.2020
1 Debtors Turnover Ratio 5.06 6.60
2 Inventory Turnover Ratio 6.53 6.33
3 Debt Equity Ratio 0.01 0.01
4 Current Ratio 1.34 1.65
5 Operating Profit Margin 4.57 5.24
6 Net Profit Margin 3.86 2.77
7 Return on Networth 17.57 12.41

The Return on Networth as on 31.03.2021 has improved due to favourable movement of global VAM prices, 
higher sales due to reduction in adverse impact of Covid-19 pandemic and lower fluctuations in foreign 
exchange rates.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Members of
Vinyl Chemicals (India) Limited

Report on the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements of Vinyl Chemicals (India) Limited (“the 
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2021, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other 
Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in the Equity for the year then ended and a 
summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Standalone Ind AS 
Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act,2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a 
true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read together with 
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015,(Ind AS) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, 
of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2021, and its Profit, Total Comprehensive Income, its Cash Flows and 
Changes in the Equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We have conducted our audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing 
specified under Section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the 
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the 
independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements under the provisions 
of the Act and the Rules made thereunder and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial 
statements of the current period. We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report.

Information Other than the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other information 
comprises of the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis Report, Directors’ Report including 
Annexures to the Directors’ Report, Corporate Governance Report and Information for Shareholders but does not 
include the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon.

Our opinion on the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express 
any form of assurance or conclusions thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Standalone 
Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are 
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation 
of these Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance 
including Other Comprehensive Income, Cash Flows and Changes in Equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, including Ind AS. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and 
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and 
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estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, 
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of accounting records, relevant to the preparation 
and presentation of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements, Management is responsible for assessing the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless Management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations or has 
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of Standalone Ind AS Financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and to issue an Auditor’s Report that includes 
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or 
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements.

•	� As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. We also: Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS 
Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those 
risks and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

•	� Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing 
our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial control system in place and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls.

•	� Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
related disclosures made by Management.

•	� Conclude on the appropriateness of Management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and based on 
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty 
exists, we are required to draw attention in our Auditor’s Report to the related disclosures in the Standalone Ind AS 
Financial Statements or if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on 
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause 
the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

•	� Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements, including 
the disclosures and whether the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions 
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone Ind AS Financial Statements that, individually or 
in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial 
statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of 
our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements 
in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing 
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during 
our audit.
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. 	� As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Government of India in terms of 
Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the Annexure “A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the 
Order, to the extent applicable.

2. 	� As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

	 (a)	� We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were 
necessary for the purposes of our audit.

	 (b)	� In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from 
our examination of those books.

	 (c)	� The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement 
and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

	 (d)	� In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified 
under Section 133 of the Act.

	 (e)	� On the basis of the written representations received from the Directors as on 31st March, 2021 and taken on record 
by the Board of Directors, none of the Directors are disqualified as on 31st March, 2021 from being appointed as a 
Director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

	 (f)	� With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”. Our report expresses an 
unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial control over 
financial reporting.

	 (g)	� With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements of Section 
197(16) of the Act, as amended:

		�  In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid 
by the Company to its Directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act.

	 (h)	� With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us:

		  i.	� The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its Standalone Ind AS 
Financial Statements – Refer Note 30 to the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements;

		  ii.	� The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts; as such the question of 
commenting on any material foreseeable losses thereon does not arise;

		  iii.	� There has been no delay in transferring amounts required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund.

For Khanna & Panchmia
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 136041W

	 Devendra Khanna
			   	 Partner 
	  			   Membership No. 038987

UDIN No. : 21038987AAAAFJ7925
Place	 :	  Mumbai 	
Date		 :	 10th May, 2021	
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 	 Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditors' Report

(Referred to in Paragraph 1 under the heading of "Report on Other Legal and 
Regulatory Requirements” of our report of even date)

(i)	 a)	 The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details and  
		  situation of fixed assets.

	� b)	� As explained to us, the fixed assets have been physically verified by the Management in accordance with the phased 
programme of verification, which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the 
nature of its assets. According to information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on 
such verification.

	� c)	� Based on our audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the Financial Statements 
and according to information and explanations given by the Management, the title deeds of immovable properties are 
held in the name of the Company.

(ii)	� As explained to us, the inventories were physically verified during the year by the Management at reasonable intervals and 
no material discrepancies were noticed on such physical verification.

(iii)	� According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, 
to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnership or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of 
the Act. Accordingly, Clause 3(iii)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable and hence not commented upon.

(iv) 	� According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans, made investment or 
provided guarantee, which are covered by the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. Hence, 
reporting under Clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable.

(v)	� The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public. Accordingly, Clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

(vi) 	� The cost records prescribed under Section 148(1) of the Act are not applicable to the Company and hence, Clause 3(vi) of 
the Order is not applicable.

(vii) 	 a)	� According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by us, in our 
opinion, the Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, 
Employees' State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service tax, Goods and Services Tax, Customs Duty, Excise 
Duty, Value Added Tax, Cess and other statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities. There were 
no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, 
Service Tax, Goods and Services Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Value Added Tax, Cess and other material 
statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2021 for a period of more than six months from the date they became 
payable.

	 (b) �	� According to information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by us, in our 
opinion, there were no dues which have not been deposited in respect of Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax 
Goods and Services Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty and Value Added Tax on account of any dispute except as 
mentioned below -

Name of 
Statute

Nature of Dues Amount in 
`

Period to which the 
amount relates

Forum where dispute 
is pending

Sales Tax Act Sales Tax in 
Various States

6,44,71,632 2005-06 to 2007-08, 
2009-10, 2010-11

Joint Commissioner (Appeals), 
Maharashtra Sales Tax Tribunal

(viii) 	�In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of 
loans or borrowings to banks. The Company has not taken loans from any financial institutions and government nor issued 
any debentures.

(ix) 	� The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) or term 
loans and hence reporting under Clause 3(ix) of the Order is not applicable.

(x) 	� Based upon the audit procedures performed and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the 
Company or any fraud on the Company by its officers/employees has been noticed or reported during the year nor have 
we been informed about any such case by the Management.
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(xi)	� In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us, the Company has paid/provided remuneration in 
accordance with requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V of the Companies 
Act, 2013.

(xii)	 As the Company is not Nidhi Company, the reporting under Clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

(xiii)	� In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is in compliance with Sections 
177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, where applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of 
related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements etc. as required by the applicable accounting 
standards.

(xiv)	� During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly 
convertible debentures and hence, reporting under Clause 3(xiv) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

(�xv)	� In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year, the Company has not entered 
into any non-cash transactions with its Directors or persons connected with them and hence provisions of Section 192 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable.

(xvi)	 The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For Khanna & Panchmia
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 136041W

 	 Devendra Khanna
				    	 Partner 
	  			   Membership No. 038987

UDIN No. : 21038987AAAAFJ7925

Annexure “B” to the Independent Auditors' Report

(Referred to in Paragraph 2 (f) under the heading of "Report on Other Legal and 
Regulatory Requirements" of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause(i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Vinyl Chemicals (India) Limited (“the Company”) 
as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal 
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence 
to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the 
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our 
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial 
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, 
both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply 
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal 
financial controls over financial reporting were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material 
respects.

Place	 :	  Mumbai 	
Date		 :	 10th May, 2021	
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Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial control system 
over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included 
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
Company’s internal financial control system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding 
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and 
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions 
and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary 
to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts 
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of Management and Directors of the 
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or 
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or 
improper Management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk 
that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the 
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of information and explanations given to us, the Company has, in all materials respects, an adequate 
internal financial control system over financial reporting and such financial controls over financial reporting are operating 
effectively as at March 31, 2021 based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Khanna & Panchmia
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 136041W

	 Devendra Khanna
			   	 Partner 
	  			   Membership No. 038987

UDIN No. : 21038987AAAAFJ7925
Place	 :	  Mumbai 	
Date		 :	 10th May, 2021	
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As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board
For Khanna & Panchmia
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 136041W P.C. Patel M.B. Parekh

President & Secretary Chairman & Managing Director
Devendra Khanna
Partner
Mem.No. 38987 M.S. Gayatonde N.K. Parekh

DirectorChief Financial Officer
Place : Mumbai
Dated: 10th May, 2021

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st March, 2021

Notes 31st March, 
2021

31st March, 
2020

` ` `
ASSETS
1. Non-current assets

a) Property,Plant and Equipment 3 20,39,902 21,04,271
b) Deferred tax asset (Net) 17  -  3,08,330
c) Other non-current assets 4 49,01,007 63,44,367

Total Non-current assets 69,40,909 87,56,968
2. Current assets

a) Inventories 5 73,22,47,584 47,82,26,926
b) Financial Assets

i) Other investments 6 54,59,22,974 47,41,76,137
ii) Trade receivables 7 1,10,73,06,865 45,58,54,227
iii) Cash and cash equivalents 8 10,97,09,062 10,63,25,517
iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above 9 79,22,710 86,99,977
v) Loans 10 57,258 38,000
vi) Other financial assets 11 15,000 13,45,087

c) Other current assets 12 17,93,78,200 2,24,56,821
Total Current assets 2,68,25,59,653 1,54,71,22,692

Total Assets 2,68,95,00,562 1,55,58,79,660
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1. Equity

Shareholders' funds
a) Equity Share Capital 13 1,83,43,984 1,83,43,984
b) Other Equity 14 66,25,11,135 59,31,46,853
Equity attributable to owners of the Company &
Total Equity

68,08,55,119 61,14,90,837

LIABILITIES
2. Non-current liabilities

a) Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 15  49,47,308 49,47,308

b) Provisions 16 52,14,512 13,14,498
c) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 17  68,112  -
Total Non-current liabilities 1,02,29,932 62,61,806

3. Current liabilities
a) Financial liabilities

i) Trade payables 18
Total outstanding dues of micro &
small enterprises - -
Total outstanding dues of others 1,95,93,40,808 91,80,00,972

ii) Other financial liabilities 19 3,41,32,751 1,80,10,114
b)  Other current liabilities 20 40,81,972 13,93,823
c)  Provisions 21  8,59,980 7,22,108
Total Current liabilities 1,99,84,15,511 93,81,27,017

Total Equity and Liabilities 2,68,95,00,562 1,55,58,79,660
Summary of significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31st March, 2021

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board
For Khanna & Panchmia
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 136041W P.C. Patel M.B. Parekh

President & Secretary Chairman & Managing Director
Devendra Khanna
Partner
Mem.No. 38987 M.S. Gayatonde N.K. Parekh

DirectorChief Financial Officer
Place : Mumbai
Dated: 10th May, 2021

Notes 31st March, 
2021

31st March, 
2020

` ` `

Income
Revenue from operations 22 4,04,15,22,865 3,72,32,75,728

Other income 23 1,36,74,481 3,72,88,016

Total Income 4,05,51,97,346 3,76,05,63,744

Expenses
Purchase of traded goods 24 4,06,63,14,601 3,33,96,05,325

(Increase)/decrease in inventories of traded goods 25  (25,40,20,658) 18,47,27,370

Cost of traded goods sold  3,81,22,93,943  3,52,43,32,695

Employee benefit expenses 26  3,90,60,060  3,28,65,122

Finance costs 27  4,64,174  5,11,597

Depreciation and amortization 3 64,369 68,249

Other expenses 28 5,08,77,591 10,28,87,964

Total Expenses 3,90,27,60,137 3,66,06,65,627
Profit before tax 15,24,37,209 9,98,98,117
Tax expense
Current tax 36  3,85,00,000 2,55,30,000

Deferred tax 36  4,23,615  (2,21,219)

Total tax expenses  3,89,23,615 2,53,08,781

Profit for the year 11,35,13,594 7,45,89,336
Other Comprehensive Income
Less: Remeasurement of defined benefit plan (Gratuity) 29  1,40,245 3,46,296

Total Comprehensive Income 11,33,73,349 7,42,43,040
Earnings per share
Basic 6.19 4.07

Diluted 6.19 4.07

Summary of significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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a. Equity Share Capital:  Amount
(`)

Balance at 1st April, 2019  1,83,43,984

Changes in equity share capital during the year  -

Balance at 31st March, 2020  1,83,43,984

Changes in equity share capital during the year -

Balance at 31st March, 2021  1,83,43,984

b. Other Equity:

Reserves and Surplus

Capital 
Reserve

(`)

General 
Reserve

(`)

Surplus in 
Statement 

of Profit and 
Loss

(`)

Total
(`)

Balance at 1st April, 2019  54,46,752  11,73,40,204  44,91,72,119  57,19,59,075

Profit for the year  7,45,89,336  7,45,89,336

Other comprehensive income for the year, 
net of income tax

 (3,46,296)  (3,46,296)

Transfer to General Reserve - -

Payment of dividends & dividend tax  (5,30,55,262)  (5,30,55,262)

Balance at 31st March, 2020  54,46,752  11,73,40,204  47,03,59,897  59,31,46,853

Profit for the year  11,35,13,594  11,35,13,594

Other comprehensive income for the year, 
net of income tax

 (1,40,245)  (1,40,245)

Transfer to General Reserve - -

Payment of dividends & dividend tax  (4,40,09,067)  (4,40,09,067)

Balance at 31st March, 2021  54,46,752  11,73,40,204  53,97,24,179  66,25,11,135

Statement of changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March, 2021

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board
For Khanna & Panchmia
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 136041W P.C. Patel M.B. Parekh

President & Secretary Chairman & Managing Director
Devendra Khanna
Partner
Mem.No. 38987 M.S. Gayatonde N.K. Parekh

DirectorChief Financial Officer
Place : Mumbai
Dated: 10th May, 2021
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR the year ended 31st March, 2021

Notes 31st March,
2021

31st March,
2020

` `

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit/(loss) before tax 15,24,37,209 9,98,98,117

Adjustments for:

Interest income  (1,20,000) (1,20,000)

Net (gain)/loss on sale of current investments  (1,12,29,438) (1,39,17,524)

Net (gain)/loss on financial liabilities designated as at fair value 
through profit or loss

 1,02,15,211 (2,32,43,161)

Net (gain)/loss on financial assets mandatorily measured at fair 
value through profit or loss

 (18,64,175)  -

Finance costs 4,64,174 5,11,597

Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations through OCI (Gross)  (1,87,418) (4,62,777)

Depreciation & amortization of non-current assets 64,369 68,249

14,97,79,932 6,27,34,501

Movements in working capital:

Decrease/(increase) in fixed assets  -  -

Decrease/(increase) in inventories  (25,40,20,658) 18,47,27,370

Decrease/(increase) in trade & other receivables  (65,14,52,638) 18,29,03,740

(Increase)/decrease in other assets  (15,33,89,923) (1,32,49,399)

Increase/(decrease) in trade payables  1,04,13,39,836 13,61,19,680

Increase/(decrease) in provisions  40,37,886 5,73,850

Increase/(decrease) in other liabilities  18,95,575 49,92,276

Cash generated from Operations  13,81,90,010  55,88,02,018

Interest and other finance expenses  (4,64,174) (5,11,597)

Income taxes paid  (3,18,00,000) (4,63,59,355)

Cash Flow before extraordinary items  10,59,25,836  51,19,31,066

Extraordinary items  -  -

Net Cash from Operating Activities (A)  10,59,25,836  51,19,31,066

Cash flows from investing activities

Sale/(Purchase) of financial assets (Net)  (5,86,53,224) (43,84,78,406)

Interest received  1,20,000 1,20,000
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing activities (B)  (5,85,33,224)  (43,83,58,406)



28

Vinyl Chemicals (India) Ltd.

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR the year ended 31st March, 2021

Notes 31st March,
2021

31st March,
2020

` `

Cash flows from financing activities

Dividend paid (including dividend tax,where applicable) on
equity shares

(4,40,09,067) (5,30,55,262)

Net cash flows from/(used in) financing activities (C) (4,40,09,067)  (5,30,55,262)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)  33,83,545  2,05,17,398

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 10,63,25,517 8,58,08,119

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 10,97,09,062 10,63,25,517

Components of cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand 20,820 18,531

Balances with banks - in current accounts 10,96,88,242 10,63,06,986

Total cash and cash equivalents 10,97,09,062 10,63,25,517

Summary of significant accounting policies 2

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board
For Khanna & Panchmia
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 136041W P.C. Patel M.B. Parekh

President & Secretary Chairman & Managing Director
Devendra Khanna
Partner
Mem.No. 38987 M.S. Gayatonde N.K. Parekh

DirectorChief Financial Officer
Place : Mumbai
Dated: 10th May, 2021
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021
Note 1
Corporate Information
The Company was incorporated in 1986 and is dealing in chemicals, mainly Vinyl Acetate Monomer (VAM). The equity 
shares of the Company are listed on BSE Ltd. (BSE) and National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. (NSE).
The address of its registered office is Regent Chambers,7th Floor, Jamnalal Bajaj Marg, 208 Nariman Point, 
Mumbai 400021.The address of principal place of business is Ramkrishna Mandir Road, Off Mathuradas Vasanji Road, 
Andheri (E), Mumbai 400059.
Note 2
Significant Accounting Policies
2.1 	 Basis of accounting & preparation of financial statements
	 T�he financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards
	� (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) read with Rule 3 of the Companies 

(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment 
Rules, 2016.

	� The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain Financial Assets / 
Liabilities (including derivative instruments) which have been measured at fair values.

2.2 	 Property, plant and equipment acquired separately & Depreciation
	� Freehold land is stated at cost and not depreciated.
	� Plant and Equipments and furniture are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment 

losses.
	� An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits 

are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement 
of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the 
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

	� Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold land and capital work in 
progress) less their residual values over their useful lives, using the straight-line method as per the useful life 
prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation 
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted 
for on a prospective basis.

	 Impairment of tangible assets
	� At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its assets to determine 

whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, 
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

	� Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
	� If the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the 

asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.
2.3	 Inventories
	� Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of inventories is determined on FIFO basis.
	� Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion 

and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
	 Obsolete, defective and slow / non-moving stocks are duly provided for.
2.4 	 Provisions (other than employee benefits)
	� A provision is recognised when as a result of past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive 

obligation which can be reliably estimated and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefit will be required 
to settle the obligation.
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	� Provisions (excluding retirement benefits) are determined based on the best estimate required to settle the 
obligation at the balance sheet date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. 
These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.Contingent 
liabilities are not recognised but disclosed in the Notes to the Financial Statements.

	� Contingent assets are not recognised but disclosed in the Notes to the Financial Statements, where an inflow of 
economic benefits is probable.

2.5 	 Financial instruments
2.5.1��� �	Initial recognition & measurement:Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company 

becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.
	� At initial recognition, financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, except for trade 

receivables and payables which are measured at their transaction price. Transaction costs that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and 
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the value of the financial 
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the 
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in profit or 
loss.

2.5.2	�Subsequent measurement of financial assets:All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in 
their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the classification of the financial assets.

	 Interest income is recognised in profit or loss and is included in the “Other income” line item.
2.5.3	�Impairment of financial assets
	� For Trade Receivables, the Company measures loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit 

losses. The Company computes expected credit loss allowance based on a provision matrix which takes into 
account historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-looking information.

2.5.4	�Financial Liabilities
	� All financial liabilities (other than derivative financial instruments) are classified as subsequently measured at 

amortised cost using effective interest method where applicable. Interest expense is included in the " Finance 
costs" line item.

2.5.5	�Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities
	� The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial 

asset expire, or when the Company transfers the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset 
in which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred, or in which the 
Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset 
and does not retain control of the financial asset.

	� The Company derecognises a financial liability (or a part of financial liability) when the contractual obligation is 
discharged, cancelled or expires.

2.5.6 	�Derivative financial instruments
	� The Company holds derivative financial instruments such as currency options or foreign exchange forward 

contracts to hedge its exposure to foreign currency exchange rate risks.
	� Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date the contracts are entered into. Subsequent to initial 

recognition, these contracts are measured at fair value and changes are recognised in profit or loss.
2.6	� Cash Flow Statement
	� Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / loss before extraordinary items and tax for 

the period is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or 
future operating cash receipts or payments. Cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the 
Company are segregated.

	� Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of cash flow statement comprise of cash at bank & cash in hand , as 
reduced by bank overdrafts (if any).

2.7 	� Employee benefits
	� Employee benefits include Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund, Employee State Insurance Scheme, Gratuity 

Fund, Compensated Absences, Anniversary Awards, Premature Death Pension Scheme and Total Disability 
Pension Scheme.
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2.7.1	�Defined contribution plans
	� The Company’s contribution to Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund and Employee State Insurance Scheme 

are considered as defined contribution plans and are charged as an expense based on the amount of contribution 
required to be made and when services are rendered by the employees.

2.7.2	�Defined benefit plans
	� For Defined Benefit Plans in the form of Gratuity Fund, the cost of providing benefits is determined using 

the Projected Unit Credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at each balance sheet date. 
Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses and the return on plan assets (excluding net interest) is 
reflected immediately in the Balance Sheet with a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive income in the 
period in which they occur. Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately 
in retained earnings and is not reclassified to profit or loss. Past service cost is recognised immediately for both 
vested and the non-vested portion. The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the Balance Sheet represents 
the present value of the defined benefit obligation, as reduced by the fair value of scheme assets. Any asset 
resulting from this calculation is limited taking into account the present value of available refunds and reductions 
in future contributions to the schemes.

2.7.3	�Short term and other long term employee benefits
	� A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and sick 

leave in the period in which the related service is rendered, at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected 
to be paid in exchange for that service.

	� Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the 
benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.

	� Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits are measured at the present value of 
the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made by the Company in respect of services provided by 
employees up to the reporting date.

2.8. Taxation:
	  i.	� Current tax: The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from 

‘profit before tax’ as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of income or expense that 
are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Company’s 
current tax is calculated using applicable tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the 
end of the reporting period and the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and other tax laws, as applicable.

	 ii. 	� Deferred tax :Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets 
and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable 
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax 
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that 
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

		�  The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to 
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the 
asset to be recovered.

		�  Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in 
which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted 
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

		�  The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow 
from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the 
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

	 iii.	� Current & Deferred tax for the year :Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except 
when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which 
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity 
respectively.

2.9 . 	�Revenue Recognition:
	� Revenue is recognised at a point in time when the performance obligation is satisfied & control of promised goods 

is transferred to customers, for an amount that reflects the consideration which the Company expects to receive 
in exchange for those goods.
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	� Revenue is based on the transaction price which is the consideration taking into account contractually defined 
terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government, except otherwise 
mentioned.Thus, it excludes Sales Tax/ VAT/Goods and Services Tax (GST). It is measured at transaction price, 
net of returns, rebates and discounts.

	� Claims which are not of material nature/insurance claims etc. are accounted for when no significant uncertainties 
are attached to their eventual receipt.Negotiated price reduction obtained from supplier is accounted for as a part 
of 'Other operating revenue'.

2.10	 Foreign currency
	� At the end of each reporting period, monetary items (including financial assets and liabilities) denominated in 

foreign currencies are re-translated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in 
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not re-translated. Gains or losses arising from these translations 
are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

2.11	� Earnings Per Share:
	� In determining the earnings per share,the Company considers the net profit after tax and post tax effect of 

any extra-ordinary/exceptional item is shown separately.The number of shares considered in computing basic 
earnings per share is the number of shares outstanding at the end of the year.

2.12	� Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation of uncertainty
	� The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires Management i.e. the Directors of the Company to 

make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies, reported amounts 
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses and accompanying disclosures and the disclosure of contingent 
liabilities. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that 
are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

	� The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates 
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period 
of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.
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As at
31st March, 

2021
`

As at
31st March, 

2020
`

Note 3
Property, plant and equipment and capital work-in-progress (Net Block)

Carrying amounts of:
Freehold land  18,57,310  18,57,310

Plant & Equipment
Plant & equipment  1,45,695  2,03,198

Furniture & Fixtures  36,897  43,763

 20,39,902  21,04,271

Freehold 
Land

`

Plant & 
Equipment

`

Furniture & 
Fixtures

`

Total

`

Cost or deemed cost (Gross Block)

Balance at 1st April , 2019  18,57,310  4,57,453  88,704  24,03,467

Additions  -   -  -  -

Disposals/ Adjustments  -  -  -  -

Balance at 31st March , 2020  18,57,310  4,57,453  88,704  24,03,467

Additions   -  -   -  -

Disposals/ Adjustments   -  -   -  -

Balance at 31st March , 2021  18,57,310  4,57,453  88,704  24,03,467

Accumulated depreciation and impairment

Balance at 1st April , 2019    -  1,96,596  34,351  2,30,947

Depreciation expense   -  57,659  10,590  68,249

Balance at 31st March , 2020   -  2,54,255  44,941  2,99,196

Depreciation expense   -  57,503  6,866  64,369

Balance at 31st March , 2021   -  3,11,758  51,807  3,63,565

Carrying amount (Net Block)

Balance at 1st April , 2019  18,57,310  2,60,857  54,353  21,72,520

Additions   -   -   -   -

Depreciation expense    -  57,659  10,590  68,249

Disposals/ Adjustments   -   -   -   -

Balance at 31st March , 2020  18,57,310  2,03,198  43,763  21,04,271

Additions   -  -   -  -

Disposals/ Adjustments   -  -   -  -

Depreciation expense    -  57,503  6,866  64,369

Balance at 31st March , 2021  18,57,310  1,45,695  36,897  20,39,902
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 As at
 31st March, 

2021
`

 As at
31st March,

2020
`

Note 4
Other Non-Current assets
Loans - Non-Current
Unsecured, considered good
Loans and Advances to Employees & Others*  10,05,000  10,05,000

* Loans given for business purpose  10,05,000  10,05,000

Non-financial Assets - Others - Non-Current
Advance Payment of Taxes -  14,43,360
(Net of Provisions Rs.7,39,03,504 as at 31st March,2020)
VAT Refund  38,96,007  38,96,007

 38,96,007  53,39,367
Total other Non-Current assets  49,01,007  63,44,367

Note 5
Inventories (At lower of cost and net realizable value)
Stock in Trade (acquired for trading)  73,22,47,584  47,82,26,926

 73,22,47,584  47,82,26,926

Goods in transit included in the above stock  59,88,37,017  -

Note 6
Financial Assets - Investments - Current

 As at
 31st March, 

2021

 As at
 31st March,

2021

 As at
 31st March,

2020

 As at
 31st March,

2020
 Qty. `  Qty. `

Investments in Mutual Funds
Quoted
Other investments
ICICI Prudential-Money Market Fund  18,48,840  54,59,22,974 - -
ICICI Prudential-Overnight Direct Growth Fund - -  44,00,756  47,41,76,137
Total  18,48,840  54,59,22,974  44,00,756  47,41,76,137

Note 7
Financial Assets - Trade Receivables - Current

 As at
 31st March, 

2021
`

 As at
31st March,

2020
`

– Unsecured, considered good  1,10,73,06,865  45,58,54,227
– Considered doubtful  25,777 -

 1,10,73,32,642  45,58,54,227
Less: Provision for doubtful receivables  25,777 -

 1,10,73,06,865  45,58,54,227
The average credit period on sales of goods is 47 days.
Before accepting any new customer, the Company uses market information & checks financial position to assess the 
potential customer's credit quality.
The Company has a policy of writing off bad debts on case to case basis since there are no major cases of defaults 
in the last five years.
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 As at
 31st March, 

2021
`

 As at
 31st March, 

2020
`

Note 8

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash on Hand  20,820  18,531

Balance with banks

In Current Accounts (including Remittances in Transit)  10,96,88,242  10,63,06,986

 10,97,09,062  10,63,25,517

Note 9
Bank Balances other than Cash and Cash Equivalents

Other Bank Balances

Earmarked Accounts

In unpaid dividend accounts  79,22,710  86,99,977

 79,22,710  86,99,977

Note 10
Loans - Current

Unsecured, considered good

Loans and Advances to Employees & Others*  57,258  38,000

*Loans given for business purpose  57,258  38,000

Note 11
Financial Assets - Others - Current

Security deposit

Unsecured, considered good  15,000  15,000

Other Receivables

Derivative asset -  13,30,087

 15,000  13,45,087

Note 12
Non financial Assets - Others - Current

Prepaid Expenses  4,98,197 -

Advance Tax
(Net of provision ` 6,40,30,000 & ` 7,85,00,000 as at 31.3.2020)

22,82,000 91,29,355

Others  17,65,98,003  1,33,27,466

 17,93,78,200  2,24,56,821
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 As at
 31st March, 

2021
`

 As at
 31st March, 

2020
`

Note 13
Share Capital

Authorised Capital

3,49,66,001 Equity Shares of ` 1 each  3,49,66,001  3,49,66,001

(3,49,66,001 Equity Shares of ` 1 each as at 31st March, 2020)

 3,49,66,001  3,49,66,001

Issued Capital

1,83,43,984 Equity Shares of ` 1 each, fully paid-up 1,83,43,984 1,83,43,984

(1,83,43,984 Equity Shares of ` 1 each as at 31st March, 2020)

1,83,43,984 1,83,43,984
Subscribed and Paid up Capital
1,83,37,111 Equity Shares of ` 1 each, fully paid-up  1,83,37,111  1,83,37,111

(1,83,37,111 Equity Shares of ` 1 each as at 31st March, 2020)

 Add: Amount received on 6,873 forfeited equity shares  6,873  6,873
(6,873 forfeited equity shares as at 31st  March, 2020)

 1,83,43,984  1,83,43,984

Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the 
reporting period:

No. of Shares Amount
`

Balance at 31st March, 2021 & 31st March, 2020  1,83,37,111  1,83,43,984

Terms/Rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ` 1 per share. Each holder of equity shares 
is entitled to one vote per share.

In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after 
distribution of all preferential amounts, in the proportion of their shareholding.

During the year ended 31st March, 2020, the Company had paid Final Dividend of ` 2.40 per equity share of ` 1 each 
for the Financial Year 2018-2019.

During the year ended 31st March, 2021, the Company had paid Final Dividend of ` 2.40 per equity share of ` 1 each 
for the Financial Year 2019-2020.

On 10th May, 2021, the Board of Directors of the Company have proposed a dividend of ̀  3.75 per equity share in respect  
of the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2021 subject to the approval of shareholders at the Annual General Meeting. 
If approved, the dividend would result in a cash outflow of ` 6,87,64,166.

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company:

Particulars As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020
No. of Shares held  % of Holding No. of Shares held  % of Holding

Pidilite Industries Ltd.  74,51,540 40.64%  74,51,540 40.64%
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 As at
 31st March, 

2021
 `

 As at
 31st March, 

2020
`

Note 14

Other Equity
Capital Reserve  54,46,752  54,46,752
General Reserve  11,73,40,204  11,73,40,204
Surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss  53,97,24,179  47,03,59,897

 66,25,11,135  59,31,46,853
a. Capital Reserve
Balance as per last financial statements  54,46,752  54,46,752

 54,46,752  54,46,752
b. General Reserve
Balance as per last financial statements  11,73,40,204  11,73,40,204

c. Surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss
Balance as per last financial statements  47,03,59,897  44,91,72,119
Add	 :	 Profit for the year  11,35,13,594  7,45,89,336
Less	 :	 Final Equity Dividend of 2018-2019 paid in 2019-2020
		  & of 2019-2020 paid in 2020-2021

 (4,40,09,067)  (4,40,09,067)

		  Tax on equity dividend  -  (90,46,195)
Add/(Less):Other comprehensive income  (1,40,245)  (3,46,296)
Closing Balance  53,97,24,179  47,03,59,897

Note 15
Financial Liabilities - Borrowings -Non-current
 Deferred sales tax loan (unsecured) 49,47,308 49,47,308

49,47,308 49,47,308

Note 16
Provisions - Non-Current
Provision for leave benefits (long term) 7,86,729 7,80,700
Provision for tax 38,80,216 -
(Net of tax payment ` 3,00,000)
Provision for gratuity (long term) 5,47,567  5,33,798

 52,14,512 13,14,498
Note 17
Deferred Tax (Liabilities)/Assets (Net)
Tax effect of items constituting Deferred Tax Liabilities  (4,98,179)  (36,784)
Tax effect of items constituting Deferred Tax Assets  4,30,067  3,45,114

 (68,112)  3,08,330

Note 18
Financial Liabilities - Trade Payables - Current
Trade Payables
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - -
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 
small enterprises

 1,95,93,40,808  91,80,00,972

 1,95,93,40,808  91,80,00,972



38

Vinyl Chemicals (India) Ltd.

 As at
 31st March, 

2021
 `

 As at
 31st March, 

2020
`

Note 19
Financial Liabilities - Others - Current
Unpaid Dividend  79,22,711  86,99,978
Accrued liabilities for expenses  1,73,24,916  93,10,136
Derivative liability  88,85,124   –

 3,41,32,751  1,80,10,114

Note 20
Non Financial Liabilities - Others - Current
Statutory remittances  25,46,737  4,79,233
Employee related liabilities  2,16,308  2,11,371
Advances from customers  13,18,927  7,03,219

 40,81,972  13,93,823

Note 21
Provisions-Current
Provision for gratuity (short term)  6,14,030  5,94,451
Provision for leave benefits (short term)  2,45,950  1,27,657

 8,59,980  7,22,108

Note 22
Revenue from operations
Sale of products (traded goods)
Vinyl Acetate Monomer 3,95,34,10,649 3,61,09,25,364
Other operating revenue
Discount received  8,79,18,717  11,23,50,364
Insurance claims received  1,93,499  –

4,04,15,22,865 3,72,32,75,728

Note 23
Other income
Interest income on Deposit  1,20,000 1,20,000
Net gain arising on financial assets/liabilities designated as at
Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)

 18,64,175 2,31,69,669

Net gain on sale of current investments  1,12,29,438 1,39,17,524
Miscellaneous income
Miscellaneous receipts  4,60,868 80,823

1,36,74,481 3,72,88,016

Note 24
Purchase of traded goods
Vinyl Acetate Monomer 4,06,63,14,601 3,33,96,05,325

4,06,63,14,601 3,33,96,05,325
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 As at
 31st March, 

2021
`

 As at
 31st March, 

2020
`

Note 25
(Increase)/Decrease in inventories of traded goods
Inventories at the beginning of the year 47,82,26,926 66,29,54,296
Less: Inventories at the end of the year 73,22,47,584 47,82,26,926

 (25,40,20,658)  18,47,27,370
Note 26
Employee benefits expenses
Salary,wages,allowances, bonus etc. 3,69,40,752 3,11,65,694
Contribution to provident and other funds 14,43,286 13,21,611
Staff welfare expenses 6,76,022 3,77,817

3,90,60,060 3,28,65,122
Note 27
Finance costs
Interest expense  45,731 10,562
Bank charges  4,18,443 5,01,035

 4,64,174 5,11,597

Note 28
Other expenses
Insurance  19,24,509 24,04,804
Rent  56,800 48,800
Rates & Taxes - 600
Repairs to others  53,450 88,946
Printing and stationery  22,915 44,561
Postage and telephone 98,563 1,04,555
Travelling and conveyance 2,46,413 6,56,884
Motor car expenses 8,10,879 7,20,792
Provision for doubtful debts  25,777 -
Directors' sitting fees  5,20,500 4,78,500
Commission to non-executive directors  15,00,000 6,00,000
Payments to auditor (refer details below) 7,65,000 6,71,500
Exchange loss on foreign currency transactions and translation (net) 2,81,71,697 8,92,09,186
Net loss arising on financial assets/liabilities designated as at FVTPL  1,02,15,211 21,594
Contribution towards CSR.  25,00,000 27,00,000
Miscellaneous expenses 39,65,877 51,37,242

5,08,77,591 10,28,87,964

Payments to Auditor
As Auditor
Audit fee 4,00,000 4,00,000
Tax audit fee 50,000 50,000
VAT audit fee  - 70,000
In other capacity
For other services (certification fees) 3,15,000 1,51,500

7,65,000 6,71,500
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 As at
 31st March, 

2021
`

 As at
 31st March, 

2020
`

Note 29
Other Comprehensive Income
Actuarial (gains)/losses  1,87,418 4,62,777

Less: Tax effect on Other Comprehensive Income  47,173 1,16,481

 1,40,245  3,46,296

Note 30
Contingent liabilities not provided for

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts comprise of:
Sales Tax claims disputed by the Company relating to issue of declaration forms, 
set-off & classification of sales  6,44,71,632  6,44,71,632

Note 31

Details of dues to micro and small enterprises

The Company did not have any time during the year, amount due to small and medium enterprises (SME) which is 
outstanding for more than 45 days. Further, no interest is paid/payable to such SME creditors. The above information 
has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the 
Company.

Note 32

Related party disclosures :

i . Names of related parties and relationship:

Pidilite Industries Limited _ ��Promoter Company
(holds 40.64% of equity shares of the Company)

Pidilite Speciality Chemicals Bangladesh Private Limited _ Subsidiary of Promoter Company

Pidilite Lanka (Private) Limited _ �Subsidiary of Promoter Company

ii. Key Managerial Personnel _ Shri M.B. Parekh, Chairman and Managing Director

Shri P.C. Patel, President & Company Secretary

Shri M.S. Gayatonde, Chief Financial Officer

iii. Other Directors _ Sarva Shri N.K. Parekh, A.B. Parekh, R.M. Gandhi, 
A.D. Mavinkurve & Smt. Y.J. Mogrelia
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Note 33
Earnings per share (EPS)

Computation for both basic and diluted earnings per share of ` 1 each 
(previous year ` 1 each):

a. Profit as per statement of profit & loss available for equity shareholders  11,35,13,594  7,45,89,336

b. Number of equity shares for basic and diluted earnings per share 
computation

 1,83,37,111  1,83,37,111

c. Basic and diluted earnings per share (`) 6.19 4.07

iv. Transactions with related parties are as follows:  As at
 31st March, 

2021
`

 As at
 31st March, 

2020
`

a. Sales and related income (excluding tax)

 i) Pidilite Industries Limited  3,48,46,53,841  3,20,26,24,549

 ii) Pidilite Speciality Chemicals Bangladesh Private Limited  2,10, 24,143  72,02,845

 iii) Pidilite Lanka (Private) Ltd. 40,79,577  48,77,128

b. Sitting fees to Directors  5,20,500 4,78,500

c. Commission to Directors  15,00,000  6,00,000

d. Commission to Managing Director  79,00,000  33,00,000

e. Payment to Chief Financial Officer  31,33,100  28,37,892

f. Outstanding balance :

Debtors

i) Pidilite Industries Limited  1,03,89,67,661  35,41,29,569

ii) Pidilite Speciality Chemicals Bangladesh Private Limited  55,49,786  26,42,378

iii) Pidilite Lanka (Private) Ltd.  27,12,056  27,79,724

Except 32 (iv)(b),( c),(d) & (e), the rest of the above transactions are with 
Pidilite Industries Limited & its subsidiaries.
No amounts have been written off or written back during the year in 
respect of debts due from or to related parties.

Note 34

Segment information

The Company's current business activity has only one primary reportable segment, namely trading in chemicals.
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Note 35

Gratuity

The Company has classified various employee benefits as under:

A)	 Defined Contribution Plans

	 (a)	 Provident Fund

	 (b) 	 Superannuation Fund

	 �The Provident Fund is operated by the Regional Provident Fund Commissioner and the Superannuation Fund 
is administered by the LIC of India as applicable for all eligible employees. Under the schemes, the Company is 
required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll cost to the retirement benefit schemes to fund the benefits. 
These funds are recognised by the Income Tax Authorities.

	 The Company has recognised the following amounts in the Statement of Profit and Loss:
For the year ended

31st March, 
2021

31st March, 
2020

` `
(i) Contribution to Provident Fund 7,42,088 6,55,664
(ii) Contribution to Employees' Superannuation Fund 1,29,024 1,15,200
(iii) Contribution to Employees' Pension Scheme 1995 1,65,000 1,92,500
(iv) Contribution to National Pension Scheme 1,25,028  1,11,636

11,61,140 10,75,000

B) Defined Benefit Plans
(a) Gratuity
(b) Compensated Absences

	� Valuations in respect of above have been carried out by independent actuary as at the balance sheet date, 
based on the following assumptions:

Valuations as at
31st March, 

2021
31st March, 

2020
(i) Discount Rate (per annum) 6.44% 6.04%

(ii) Rate of increase in Compensation levels (per annum) 6.50% 6.50%

(iii) Expected Rate of Return on Assets 6.44% 6.04%

(iv) Attrition Rate 2.00% 2.00%

(v) Retirement Age 60 years 60 years

(vi) The expected rate of return on plan assets is determined after considering several applicable factors 
such as the composition of the plan assets, investment strategy, market scenario, etc. In order to protect 
the capital and optimise returns within acceptable risk parameters, the plan assets are well diversified.

(vii) The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Government of India securities as at the 
balance sheet date for the estimated term of the obligations.

(viii) The estimate of future salary increases considered, takes into account the inflation, seniority, promotion, 
increments and other relevant factors.
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31st March 
2021

31st March 
2020

Gratuity
Funded

(`)

Gratuity
Funded

(`)
Changes in Present value of Obligation
(a) Opening Present value of Obligation  54,37,599  44,33,203

(b) Interest cost  3,28,431  3,31,160

(c) Service cost  2,14,000  1,89,449

(d) Benefits paid  (8,14,400)  -

(e) Actuarial (Gain)/Loss  2,37,356  4,83,787

(f) Closing Present value of Obligation  54,02,986  54,37,599

Changes in Fair value of Plan Assets
(a) Opening Fair value of Plan Assets  43,09,350  36,67,972

(b) Expected Return on Plan Assets  49,938  21,010

(c) Actuarial Gain/(Loss)  -  -

(d) Employer's Contributions  4,36,216  3,46,370

(e) Interest income  2,60,285  2,73,998

(f) Benefits Paid  (8,14,400)  -

(g) Closing Fair value of Plan Assets  42,41,389  43,09,350

Actual Return on Plan Assets
(a) Expected Return on Plan Assets  49,938  21,010

(b) Actuarial Gain/(Loss) on Plan Assets  -  -

(c) Actual Return on Plan Assets  49,938  21,010

Percentage of each category of Plan Assets to total closing fair value
Administered by Life Insurance Corporation of India  42,41,389  43,09,350

Reconciliation of the Present Value of Defined Present Obligations 
and Fair Value of Assets
(a) Closing Present Value of Funded Obligation  54,02,986  54,37,599

(b) Closing Fair Value of Plan Assets  42,41,389  43,09,350

(c) Funded Asset/(Liability) recognised in the Balance Sheet (b - a)  (11,61,597)  (11,28,249)

Amounts recognized in the Balance Sheet
(a) Closing Present value of Obligation  (54,02,986)  (54,37,599)

(b) Closing Fair value of Plan Assets  42,41,389  43,09,350

(c) Asset/(Liability) recognized in the Balance Sheet (a + b)  (11,61,597)  (11,28,249)

Expenses recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss and OCI
(a) Service Cost  2,14,000  1,89,449

(b) Interest Cost  68,146  57,162

(c) Total Expenses recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss  2,82,146  2,46,611

(d) Expected Return on Plan Assets  (49,938)  (21,010)

(e) Net Actuarial (Gain)/Loss recognised in OCI  2,37,356  4,83,787

(f) Total Expenses recognized in Comprehensive Income  1,87,418  4,62,777

(g) Total Expenses recognized in Profit & Loss & OCI (c + f)  4,69,564  7,09,388
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For the year ended
31st March, 

2021
(`)

31st March, 
2020

(`)
Sensitivity Analysis

Defined Benefit Obligation

Discount Rate

Discount Rate - 1% 3,03,786 3,00,266

Discount Rate + 1%  (2,74,332)  (2,70,668)

Salary Increase Rate

Rate - 1%  (1,92,250)  (1,83,058)

Rate + 1% 2,10,062 1,99,775

Actuarial gains and losses in respect of defined benefit plans are recognised in the financial statements through 
Other Comprehensive Income.
Through its defined benefit plans, the Company is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are 
detailed below:
Asset volatility
The plan liabilities are calculated using a discount rate set with references to government bond yields; if plan 
assets under-perform compared to the government bonds' discount rate, this will create or increase a deficit.
As the plans mature, the Company intends to reduce the level of investment risk by investing more in assets that 
better match the liabilities.
Changes in bond yields
A decrease in government bond yields will increase plan liabilities, although this is expected to be partially offset 
by an increase in the value of the plans’ bond holdings.
Life expectancy
The majority of the plan’s obligations are to provide benefits for the service life of the member, so increases in service 
life expectancy will result in an increase in the plan’s liabilities. This is particularly significant in the Company's 
defined benefit plans, where inflationary increases result in higher sensitivity to changes in service life expectancy.

Note 36
Current Tax & Deferred taxation

 As at
 31st March, 

2021
`

 As at
 31st March, 

2020
`

Current Tax
 Current Tax for current year 3,85,00,000 2,55,30,000

3,85,00,000 2,55,30,000
Deferred tax (liability)/asset

 Balance as per last financial statements                                                (A)  3,08,330 (29,370)
 Due to depreciation on fixed assets 7,818 21,475
 Due to provision for doubtful debts  6,488  -
 Provision for leave encashment  31,292 1,85,019
 Due to Ind AS adjustments (4,69,213) 14,725
 Net (debit)/credit to Profit & Loss 	 (B) (4,23,615) 2,21,219
 Net (debit)/credit to Other Comprehensive Income	 (C) 47,173  1,16,481

Closing balance	 (A+B+C)  (68,112)  3,08,330

The above working of deferred tax is based on assessment orders where assessments are completed and on 
return of income in other cases.
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Note 37

Details of Option/Forward Contracts and Unhedged foreign currency 
exposure

 As at
 31st March, 

2021
`

 As at
 31st March, 

2020
`

 a. Details of option/forward contracts outstanding as at 
the balance sheet date:

Particulars Purpose
US$ 2,07,78,535.65 (previous year 
US$1,00,38,912.02)

Import of trading goods 1,52,78,45,726 75,71,34,744

b. Details of unhedged foreign currency exposure as at 
the balance sheet date:

Particulars Purpose
US$ 57,62,080.85 (previous year US$ 24,86,423.68) Import trade payables 42,36,85,805 18,75,26,074

Note 38
Expenditure in foreign currency

 C.I.F. value of traded goods  3,92,10,02,694  3,24,19,45,366

Note 39
Earnings in foreign exchange
Export of goods on FOB basis  2,51,03,720 1,20,79,973
Insurance claims received  1,93,499  -
Rebate/Price adjustment received 8,79,18,717 11,23,50,364

11,32,15,936 12,44,30,337

Note 40

Financial Instruments

i. Capital Management
The Company manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Company will be able to continue as going 
concerns while maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimum utilisation of the equity balance.
The capital structure of the Company consists of only equity of the Company. The Company is not subject to any 
externally imposed capital requirements.

ii. Categories of financial instruments
 As at

 31st March, 
2021

`

 As at
 31st March, 

2020
`

Financial assets
Measured at FVTPL
(i) Investments in Mutual Funds  54,59,22,974  47,41,76,137
Measured at amortised cost
(i) Trade Receivables  1,10,73,06,865  45,58,54,227
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents  10,97,09,062  10,63,25,517
(iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above 79,22,710 86,99,977
(iv) Loans 57,258 38,000
(v) Foreign exchange option / forward contracts  - 13,30,087
(vi) Security deposits *  15,000  15,000
Total 1,77,09,33,869  1,04,64,38,945
* Included in other financial assets
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 As at
 31st March, 

2021
`

 As at
 31st March, 

2020
`

Financial liabilities
Measured at FVTPL
(i) Foreign exchange option/forward contracts  88,85,124  -
Measured at amortised cost
 i) Borrowings  49,47,308  49,47,308
 ii) Trade payables  1,95,93,40,808  91,80,00,972
 iii) Other financial liabilities  2,52,47,627  1,80,10,114

 1,99,84,20,867  94,09,58,394

iii.	 Financial risk management objectives
	� The Company's Corporate Treasury function provides services to the business, co-ordinates access to domestic 

and international financial markets, monitors and manages the financial risks relating to the operations of the 
Company through internal risk reports which analyse exposures by degree and magnitude of risks. These risks 
include market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

	� The Company seeks to minimise the effects of these risks by using derivative financial instruments to hedge 
risk exposures. The use of financial derivatives is governed by the Company's policies approved by the board 
of directors, which provide written principles on foreign exchange risk, credit risk, the use of financial derivatives 
and non-derivative financial instruments, and the investment of excess liquidity. Compliance with policies and 
exposure limits is reviewed by the internal auditors on a continuous basis. The Company does not enter into or 
trade financial instruments, including derivative financial instruments, for speculative purposes.

iv.	 Market risk

	� The Company's activities expose it primarily to the financial risk of changes in foreign currency exchange rates 
(see note below). The Company enters into vanilla currency options or forward foreign exchange contracts to 
manage its exposure to foreign currency risk of imports.

v.	 Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

	� The Company undertakes transactions denominated in foreign currencies; consequently, exposures to exchange 
rate fluctuations arise.

	�� Exchange rate exposures are managed within approved policy parameters .

The carrying amounts of the Company's foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities 
at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Particulars  Forward contracts/
options Value in Foreign 

Currency

 Value (`)

31st March, 
2021

31st March, 
2020

 31st March, 
2021

 31st March, 
2020

Amounts payable in foreign currency on account 
of the following:
USD  2,07,78,536  1,00,38,912 1,52,78,45,726 75,71,34,744
Average Exchange rate USD Buy (` per USD) 74.12  71.01

	 The Company is mainly exposed to the USD.

	�� The following table details the Company's sensitivity to a 2% increase and decrease in INR against the	
relevant foreign currency. 2% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to 
Key Management Personnel and represents Management's assessment of the reasonably possible change 
in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated 
monetary items and adjusts their translation at the period end for a 2% change in foreign currency rates.
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A negative number below indicates a decrease in profit or equity where the INR weakens 2% against	 USD. For 
a 2% strengthening of the INR against USD, there would be a comparable impact on the profit or equity, and the 
balances below would be positive.

Particulars USD impact

F.Y. 2020-2021 F.Y. 2019-2020

Impact on profit or loss for the year  (3,05,56,915)  (1,51,42,695)

	 This is mainly attributable to the exposure outstanding on USD payables towards imports.

	�� In Management's opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange 
risk because the exposure at the end of the reporting period does not reflect the exposure during the year.

	 The line-items in the balance sheet that include the above hedging instruments are “Other financial liabilities”.

	� The aggregate amount of MTM loss/gain under options/forward foreign exchange contracts recognised in  
profit or loss for the year, is Loss of ` 1,02,15,211 (Gain of ` 2,31,69,669 in 2019-2020).

vi	 Credit risk management

	� Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss 
to the Company.

	 Trade receivables consist of customers spread across diverse industries and geographical areas.

	� Apart from Pidilite Industries Ltd., the largest customer of the Company, the Company does not have significant 
credit risk exposure to any single counterparty.

	� The credit risk on liquid plus funds and derivative financial instruments is limited because the counterparties are 
fund houses and banks with high credit-ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

vii	 Liquidity risk management

	� As the Company is engaged in trading of chemicals,it enjoys a higher credit period from its suppliers as compared 
to the credit period extended to its customers.Consequently,the Company 's liquidity position is normally strong 
thereby substantially reducing the requirement of obtaining external finances.

	� Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the Board of Directors, which has	 established an 
appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the Company's short-term, medium-
term and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Company manages liquidity risk by 
maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring 
forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

The Note given below sets out details of additional undrawn facilities that the Company has at its disposal to 
further reduce liquidity risk:	

Financing facilities  As at
 31st March, 

2021
`

 As at
 31st March, 

2020
`

Secured Bank Overdraft/WCDL facility/Term Loan

- amount used – –

- amount unused  9,00,00,000  9,00,00,000

 9,00,00,000  9,00,00,000

viii	 Fair value measurements

	� Some of the Company's financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at fair value at the end of each 
reporting period.
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	� This note provides information about how the Company determines fair values of various financial assets and 
financial liabilities:	

Sr.
No.

Financial assets/Financial 
liabilities

Fair value (`) as at Fair value 
hierarchy

Valuation technique(s) 
and key input(s) 31/03/2021  31/03/2020

1 Foreign currency option/
forward contracts

1,53,67,30,850 
(Liability) 

including MTM 
loss of

` 88,85,124

 75,58,04,658 
(Liability) net of 

MTM gain of
` 13,30,086

Level 2 Mark to market values 
acquired from banks, 
with whom the Company 
contracts.

2 Investment in Mutual Funds 54,59,22,974 47,41,76,137 Level 1 Quoted bid prices in active 
market

Note 41
Taxes

i. Deferred Tax
2020-2021

a) Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) in relation to:
Particulars Opening

Balance
(`)

Recognised in 
Profit or Loss

(`)

Closing
Balance

(`)
Investments (FVTPL)  (18,498)  (4,69,213)  (4,87,711)
Provision for leave encashment  2,28,633  31,292 2,59,925
Provision for doubtful debts –  6,488 6,488
Property, plant and equipment  (18,286) 7,818  (10,468)

 1,91,849  (4,23,615)  (2,31,766)
b) Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) in relation to:

Particulars Opening
Balance

(`)

Recognised in 
Profit or Loss

(`)

Closing
Balance

(`)
Gratuity (expense recognised in OCI as per Actuarial 
Valuation)

 1,16,481  47,173  1,63,654

 1,16,481  47,173  1,63,654

ii 2019-2020
a) Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) in relation to:

Particulars Opening
Balance

(`)

Recognised in 
Profit or Loss

(`)

Closing
Balance

(`)
Investments (FVTPL)  (33,223)  14,725  (18,498)
Provision for leave encashment  43,614  1,85,019 2,28,633
Property, plant and equipment  (39,761) 21,475  (18,286)

 (29,370)  2,21,219  1,91,849

b) Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) in relation to:
Particulars Opening

Balance
(`)

Recognised in 
Profit or Loss

(`)

Closing
Balance

(`)
Gratuity (expense recognised in OCI as per Actuarial 
Valuation)

- 1,16,481 1,16,481

- 1,16,481 1,16,481
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iii. Income taxes relating to continuing operations

Income tax recognised in profit or loss

Particulars For year ended 
31st March, 

2021
`

For year ended 
31st March, 

2020
`

Current tax

In respect of the current year  3,85,00,000 2,55,30,000

Deferred tax

In respect of the current year  4,23,615  (2,21,219)

Total income tax expense recognised in the current year relating to 
continuing operations

3,89,23,615 2,53,08,781

iv. The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:

For year ended 
31st March, 

2021
`

For year ended 
31st March, 

2020
`

Profit before tax from continuing operations 15,24,37,209 9,98,98,117

Income tax expense calculated at 25.17% (2019-2020: 25.17%) 3,83,68,446 2,51,44,356

Effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit:

CSR Expenses 6,29,250 3,39,795

Deferred tax impact  -  (1,83,782)

Interest under Income Tax  103 922

Additional provision made during the year (74,184)  7,490

Income tax expense recognised in profit or loss (relating to continuing operations) 3,89,23,615 2,53,08,781

Note 42

Events after reporting period

There was no significant event after the end of the reporting period which requires any adjustment or disclosure in 
the financial statement other than the following:

(i) �	� The proposed dividend of ` 3.75 per equity share of ` 1 each, recommended by Board of Directors at 
its meeting held on 10th May, 2021. The proposed dividend amounts to ` 6,87,64,166 and is subject to 
approval at the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company and hence is not recognised as a liability.

(ii)�	� The Company has considered the possible effects that may result from the Covid-19 pandemic on its operations.
In developing the assumptions relating to possible future uncertainties in the economic conditions due to this 
pandemic, the Company has, upto the date of approval of the financial statements, used both internal & external 
sources of information.
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As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board

For Khanna & Panchmia
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 136041W P.C. Patel M.B. Parekh

President & Secretary Chairman & Managing Director
Devendra Khanna
Partner
Mem.No. 38987 M.S. Gayatonde N.K. Parekh

DirectorChief Financial Officer
Place : Mumbai
Dated: 10th May, 2021

Note 43

These financial statements have been approved by the Board of Directors of the Company in the meeting held on 
10th May, 2021.

Note 44

In the opinion of the Management, all assets other than Fixed Assets and Non-Current investments have a realisable 
value in the ordinary course of business, at least equal to the amount at which they are stated in the Balance Sheet.

Note 45

Previous year's figures have been regrouped wherever necessary.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

In compliance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V of Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (Listing Regulations), the company submits 
the following report:

1.	 Company’s Philosophy on Code of Governance:

	� The Company is committed to adopting good corporate governance practices and has complied in all 
material respects with the requirements specified in the Listing Regulations. The Company endeavors 
to ensure that highest standards of ethical and responsible conduct are met.

2.	 Board of Directors:

	� During the Financial Year 2020-2021, four Board Meetings were held on 15th June, 2020, 
	� 4th August, 2020, 2nd November, 2020 and 25th January, 2021 which were held through Video 

Conferencing. 

	� The composition of the Board is in conformity with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
the Rules framed thereunder and Regulation 17 of the Listing Regulations. The Independent Directors 
constitute 50% of the Board’s strength. The details of composition of the Board, category, attendance 
of Directors at Board Meetings and last Annual General Meeting (AGM), details of other Directorships 
and Committee positions as on 31st March, 2021 are given as an Annexure to this Report.

	� The number of equity shares of face value of ̀  1 each of the Company held by Non-Executive Directors 
as on 31st March, 2021 are as follows:

	� Shri N.K. Parekh - 75,951; Shri R.M. Gandhi - 2,700; Smt. Y.J. Mogrelia - 300; Shri A.D.Mavinkurve - Nil and 
Shri A.B. Parekh - 94,583.

	� The familiarization programme for Independent Directors in terms of the provisions of the Listing 
Regulations is uploaded on the website of the Company www.vinylchemicals.com.

3.	 Core skills/expertise/competence of the Board of Directors:

	� The following are the list of core skills/expertise/competencies identified by the Board of Directors as 
required in the context of the Company’s business for it to function effectively:

	 a.	 General Management and Business experience at senior level.

	 b.	 Strategic thinking and governance.

	 c.	 Expertise in finance, legal and regulatory matters.

	 The aforesaid skills are available with the Board of the Company.

4.	 Independent Directors’ Meeting:

	� In accordance with the provisions of Schedule IV (Code for Independence Directors) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and Regulation 25(3) of Listing Regulations, a meeting of the Independent Directors of the 
Company was held on 22nd January, 2021.

	� In the opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors fulfill the conditions specified in the Listing 
Regulations and are Independent of the management of the Company. The company had received 
declarations from the Independent Directors that they meet the criteria of Independence laid down under 
the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations. The draft letter of appointment/re-appointment 
containing the terms and conditions issued to the Independent Directors is uploaded on the Company’s 
website www.vinylchemicals.com.
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5.	 Audit Committee:

	� The composition of the Committee, its power and terms of reference are in conformity with 
provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules framed thereunder and  
Regulation 18 of the Listing Regulations. The members of the Audit Committee are financially literate 
and have experience in financial management. All recommendations made by the Audit Committee 
were accepted by the Board.

	� During the Financial Year 2020-2021, four meetings of the Committee were held on 15th June, 2020, 
4th August, 2020, 2nd November, 2020 and 25th January, 2021. 

	� The details of the composition of the Committee and attendance of the members at the meetings are 
as follows :

Sr.No. Name Designation Category No. of Meetings attended
1 Shri R.M. Gandhi Chairman NED (I) 4
2 Smt. Y.J. Mogrelia Member NED (I) 4
3 Shri M.B. Parekh Member ED (P) 4
4 Shri A.D. Mavikurve Member NED (I) 3

	 NED (I) 	- 	Non-Executive Director, Independent
	 ED (P)		 - 	Non-Executive Director, Promoter

	� The Company Secretary is the Secretary of the Committee. The Chief Financial Officer, Internal 
Auditors and Statutory Auditors are also invited to attend the Meetings of the Committee. 

	� The Chairman of the Audit Committee was present at 34th Annual General Meeting of the Company 
held on 16th September, 2020.

6.	 Nomination & Remuneration Committee:

	� The composition of the Committee and its terms of reference are in compliance with the provisions 
of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 & Part D of Schedule II of the  
�Listing Regulations. The Company has formulated a Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key Managerial 
Personnel (KMPs) and all Senior Management Personnel and the same is available on the website of 
the Company www.vinylchemicals.com. The Remuneration policy of the Company is directed towards 
time commitment and responsibilities of the Directors, desirability of performance-based remuneration 
and salaries paid by comparable companies. During the Financial Year 2020-2021, one meeting of the 
Committee was held on 15th June, 2020, which was attended by all the members of the Committee.

�The details of composition of the Committee as follows :

Sr.No. Name Designation Category
1 Shri R.M. Gandhi Chairman NED (I)
2 Smt Y.J. Mogrelia Member NED (I)
3 Shri A.D. Mavinkurve Member 	 N	ED (I)
4 Shri N.K. Parekh Member 	 N	ED (P)

	� NED (I) 	- 	 Non-Executive Director, Independent
	 ED (P)	 - 	 Non-Executive Director, Promoter

	� Shri M.B. Parekh is the Managing Director having tenure of five years w.e.f 1st April, 2017. It is 
proposed to re-appoint Shri M.B. Parekh as Managing Director for a further period of five years w.e.f. 
1st April, 2022, subject to the approval of the members at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of 
the Company.
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	� The Commission payable to Shri M.B. Parekh for the Financial Year 2020-2021 is ` 79,00,000. The 
Managing Director is not paid any other performance linked incentives.

	� Notice period for the Managing Director is as applicable to the senior employees of the Company.  
�No severance fee is payable to the Directors on termination of employment. The Company does not 
have a scheme for stock options for the Directors or the employees.

	� The criteria for performance evaluation cover the areas relevant to the functioning of Independent 
Directors such as preparation, participation, conduct and effectiveness. The Board evaluation for the 
Financial Year 2020-2021 was completed and summary of the findings and recommendations were 
discussed by the Directors.

	� The details of the sitting fees paid for attending the Board/Committee meetings and commission 
payable to the Non-Executive Directors for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2021 are as follows:

Sr. No. Name Sitting Fees (`) Commission (`) Total (`)

1 Shri N.K. Parekh 99,000 3,00,000 3,99,000
2 Shiri A.B. Parekh 60,000 3,00,000 3,60,000
3 Shri R.M. Gandhi 1,38,000 3,00,000 4,38,000
4 Smt Y.J. Mogrelia 1,20,000 3,00,000 4,20,000
5 Shri A.D. Mavinkurve 1,03,500 3,00,000 4,03,500

	� The Non-Executive Directors did not have pecuniary relationships or transactions vis-a-vis the 
Company. The Company has not granted any stock options to any of its Non-Executive Directors.

	� In terms of the Special Resolution passed by the Members at the Annual General Meeting held on 
1st September, 2016, the Company has paid commission to Non-Executive Directors at a rate not 
exceeding 1% per annum of the net profit of the Company computed in accordance with Section 198 
of the Companies Act, 2013 as determined by the Board of Directors based on consideration of time 
spent in attending Board Meetings, Committee Meetings and advice given to the Company whenever 
approached.

7.	 Stakeholders Relationship Committee:
	� The composition of the Committee is in conformity with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 read with Rules framed thereunder and Regulation 20 of the Listing Regulations. During the 
Financial Year 2020-2021, nine meetings of the Share Transfer Committee were held and one meeting 
of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee was held on 22nd January, 2021, which was attended by 
all the members of the Committee.

	 The details of composition of the Committee are as follows:

Sr. No. Name Designation Category
1 Shri A.D. Mavinkurve Chairman NED (I)
2 Shri R.M. Gandhi Member NED (I)
3 Shri N.K. Parekh Member NED (P)
4 Smt. Y.J. Mogrelia Member NED (I)

	 NED (I) 	- 	 Non-Executive Director, Independent
	 ED (P)	 - 	 Non-Executive Director, Promoter

	� The Committee is empowered to look into redressal of shareholders’/investors’ grievance such 
as complaints relating to transfer/transmission of shares, non-receipt of declared dividends and  
non-receipt of Annual Reports.
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	� The Secretarial Department of the Company, under the supervision of Shri P.C. Patel, President & 
Secretary, who is also the “Compliance Officer” as required by Securities & Exchange Board of India 
(SEBI)/Listing Regulations and M/s. TSR Darashaw Consultants Pvt. Ltd., Registrar & Transfer Agents, 
attend to all shareholders/investors grievances received directly or through SEBI, Stock Exchanges, 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs and Registrar of Companies, as applicable.

	� Barring certain cases pending with Courts, mainly relating to disputes over the title to shares in which the 
Company had been made a party, the Company/TSR Darashaw Consultants Pvt. Ltd. have attended to 
all the shareholders/investor grievances/correspondence generally within a period of 15 days from the 
date of receipt. 

	� The total numbers of letters received from the shareholders were 375 of which 61 were in the nature 
of complaints. All the letters have been replied to and all the complaints have been solved to the 
satisfaction of shareholders. One request for dematerialization of shares was pending for approval as 
on 31st March, 2021, which was disposed off on 14th April, 2021.

	� As per SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, the Company has framed a Code of 
Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading. All the Directors, Employees and other persons specified 
therein are governed by this Code. Shri P.C. Patel, President & Secretary is the Compliance Officer for 
the purpose of the said Code.

8.	 Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee:

	� The composition of the Committee is in compliance with the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies 
Act, 2013. During the Financial Year 2020-2021, two meetings of the Committee were held on  
15th June, 2020 and 2nd November, 2020, which was attended by all the members of the Committee.

	 The details of composition of the Committee are as follows:

Sr. No. Name Designation Category
1 Shri N. K. Parekh Chairman NED (P)
2 Shri R.M. Gandhi Member NED (I)
3 Shri M.B. Parekh Member ED (P)
4 Smt. Y.J. Mogrelia Member NED (I)

	� NED (I) 	-	 Non-Executive Director, Independent
	 NED (P)	-	 Non-Executive Director, Promoter
	 ED (P)	 -	 Executive Director Promoter

	 The Company Secretary is the Secretary of the Committee.

	 Pursuant to its terms of reference, the Committee is empowered inter alia, to:

	 (a)	� Formulate and recommend to the Board a CSR Policy indicating the activities to be undertaken 
by the Company.

	 (b)	� Formulate and recommend to the Board an Annual Action Plan in pursuance of the Company's 
CSR Policy.

	 (c)	 Recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on CSR activities.

	 (d)	 Monitor the CSR Policy of the Company.

	� The composition of the CSR Committee, details of ongoing projects being undertaken by the 
Implementing Agency and CSR Policy of the Company are uploaded on the Company's website  
www.vinylchemicals.com.
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�9.	 General Body Meetings:

	� The details of location, date and time of the Annual General Meetings (AGM) held during the last three 
years are as follows :

Financial 
Year

Venue Date & Time Details of Special Resolution passed with 
requisite majority

2019-2020 Through Video 
Conferencing/ Other 
Audio visual means 

16th September, 2020 
at 11:00 a.m.

Re-appointment of Shri N.K. Parekh as a Director.

2018-2019 Kamalnayan Bajaj 
Hall, Bajaj Bhavan, 
Jamnalal Bajaj Marg, 
Nariman Point, 
Mumbai 400 021.

5th August, 2019 at 
11:00 a.m.

(a)	 Re-appointment of Shri N K Parekh as a 
Director.

(b)	 Re-appointment of M/s. Khanna & Panchmia, 
Chartered Accountants as Statutory Auditors 
for a second consecutive term of five years.

(c)	 Re-appointment of Shri R M Gandhi as 
Independent Director for a second consecutive 
term of five years. 

(d)	 Re-appointment of Smt Y J Mogrelia as 
Independent Director of the Company for a 
second consecutive term of five years.

(e)	 Re-appointment of Shri A D Mavinkurve as 
Independent Director of the Company for a  
second consecutive term of five years.

2017-2018 Kamalnayan Bajaj 
Hall, Bajaj Bhavan, 
Jamnalal Bajaj Marg, 
Nariman Point, 
Mumbai 400 021.

31st August, 2018 at 
11:00 a.m.

(a)	 Re-appointment of Shri N K Parekh as a 
Director.

(b)	 Adoption of new Articles of Association (AOA) 
of the Company in the place of existing AOA.

(c)	 Continuation of Shri R M Gandhi as an 
Independent Director for the remaining period 
of his term.

	� No Special Resolution was passed through postal ballot during the last three years. At the ensuing 
35th AGM, no resolution is proposed to be passed through postal ballot.

10.	 Means of Communication:

	� The extracts of quarterly financial results of the Company are normally published in Business Standard 
(English) and Tarun Bharat (Marathi) newspapers. The results are also displayed on the Company's 
website www.vinylchemicals.com.

	� The Company makes timely disclosures of necessary information to the stock exchanges in terms of 
the Listing Regulations and other SEBI Regulations.

	� The Annual Report with Audited Financial Statements of the Company are available on its website 
www.vinylchemicals.com. The Annual Report with Audited Financial Statements of the Company are 
also available on the websites of the stock exchnages.

11.	 Information for Shareholders:

	� Detailed information in this regard is provided in the “Information for Shareholders” section appearing 
in this Annual Report.
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12.	 Disclosures:
	 During the Financial Year 2020-2021:
	 •	� There were no materially significant related party transactions which had potential conflict with the 

interest of the Company at large. The details of related party transactions are set out in the Notes 
to financial statements forming part of this Annual Report.

	 •	� The Company has complied with all requirements of the Listing Regulations as well as the 
Regulations/Guidelines of SEBI. Consequently, no penalties were imposed or strictures were 
passed against the Company by SEBI, Stock Exchanges or any other statutory authority on any 
matter related to capital markets during the last 3 years.

	 •�	� The Company has a Vigil Mechanism and Whistle Blower Policy for Directors and employees 
to report violations of applicable laws, regulations and Code of Conduct. During the year, no 
employee was denied access to the Audit Committee of the Company.

	 •	� Details of total fees paid to the Statutory Auditors by the Company is given under Note 28 of the 
Financial Statements for Financial Year 2020-2021 which forms part of this Annual Report.

	 •	 The Company has complied with all applicable mandatory requirements of the Listing Regulations.
	 •	� The Company’s Policy on related party transactions is uploaded on its website www.vinylchemicals.com.
	 •	� The Company has complied with all the requirements of Corporate Governance as specified in 

Regulation 17 to 27 and Clauses (b) to (i) of Sub Regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of the Listing 
Regulations.

	 •	� The Company has not made any preferential allotment or qualified institutional placement of 
shares.

	 •	� No complaints were received under the Sexual Harassment of women at Workplace (Prevention, 
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 during the Financial Year 2020-2021.

	 •��	� There were no instances wherein the Board has not accepted the recommendations made by any 
Committee of the Board.

13.	 Compliance of discretionary requirements under Regulation 27 of the Listing Regulations: 
	 (a)	 The Chairman of the Company is an Executive Chairman.
	 (b)	� As the financial results are published in the newspapers and also posted on the website of the 

Company, the same are not being sent to the shareholders.
	 (c)	� The company’s financial statements for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2021 does not 

contain any modified audit opinion.
	 (d)	 Shri M.B. Parekh is the Chairman and Managing Director of the Company.
	 (e)	 The Internal Auditor reports directly to the Audit Committee of the Company.
14.	 Information relating to Directors:
	� Information relating to Directors seeking re-appointment as required under Regulation 36(3) of the 

Listing Regulations is given in the Notice of the 35th AGM.
15.	 �Certificate from Practicing Company Secretary:
	� Certificate as required under Part C of Schedule V of Listing Regulations from M/s M. M Sheth & 

Company, Practicing Company Secretaries that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company 
have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the 
SEBI/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other statutory authority was received by the Company 
and is attached to this report.

16.	 Declaration by the Managing Director under Schedule V(D):
	� Pursuant to Schedule V(D) of the Listing Regulations, I hereby declare that all Board Members and 

Senior Management Personnel of the Company have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct of 
Board of Directors and Senior Management for the year ended 31st March, 2021.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To

The Members of
Vinyl Chemicals (India) Limited

1.	� This certificate is issued in accordance with our terms of engagement with Vinyl Chemicals (India) 
Limited (“the Company).

2.	� We have examined the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance by the Company 
for the year ended 31st March, 2021 as stipulated in Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of 
Regulation 46(2) and Paragraphs C, D & E of Schedule V of the Securities Exchange Board of India  
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (Listing Regulations).

Management’s Responsibility

3.	 The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. 

	� This responsibility includes the design, implementation and maintenance on internal control and 
procedures to ensure the compliance with conditions of Corporate Governance stipulated in the Listing 
Regulations.

Auditor’s Responsibility

4.	� Our responsibility was limited to examining procedures and implementations thereof, adopted by the 
Company for ensuring compliance with the conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an 
audit nor an expression of opinion on the Financial Statements of the Company.

5.	� We have examined the books of accounts and other relevant records and documents maintained by 
the Company for the purpose of providing reasonable assurance on the compliance with Corporate 
Governance requirements by the Company.

6.	� We have carried out the examination of relevant records of the Company in accordance with the Guidance 
Note on Certification of Corporate Governance issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of  
�India (ICAI), the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 
in so far as applicable for the purpose of this Certificate and as per Guidance Note on Reports of 
Certificates for Special Purposes issued by the ICAI which requires that we comply with the ethical 
requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by the ICAI.

7.	 �We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Control (SQC) 1, 
Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial Information and other 
Assurance and Related Services Engagements.

Opinion

8.	� Based on our examination of the relevant records and according to the information and explanations 
provided to us and the representation provided by the Management, we certify that the Company 
has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Regulations 17 to 27,  
�Clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 46(2) and paragraphs C, D and E of Schedule V of the Listing 
Regulations for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2021.

9.	� We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance to the future viability of the Company nor 
of the efficiency or effectiveness with which management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

		  For Khanna & Panchmia
Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn. No. 136041W

Devendra Khanna
Place		  : Mumbai 								         Partner 
Date			  : 10th May, 2021	 Membership No. 038987 
UDIN No.	 : 21038987AAAAFK2428	
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 

[Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015]

To, 

The Members of
Vinyl Chemicals (India) Limited
Regent Chambers, 7th floor,
208,Nariman Point, Mumbai – 400021.

I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors 
of Vinyl Chemicals (India) Limited having CIN:L24100MH1986PLC039837 and having registered office at 
Regent Chambers, 7thFloor, 208, Nariman Point, Mumbai – 400021, Maharashtra, India (hereinafter referred 
to as ‘the Company’), produced before me by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in 
accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C, Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange 
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

I have conducted online verification of records, as facilitated by the Company, due to Covid-19 pandemic 
and subsequent lockdown situation for the purpose of issuing this Certificate. 

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including Directors 
Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations 
furnished to me by the Company and its officers, I hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board 
of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on 31st March, 2021 have been debarred or 
disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other Statutory Authority.

Sr. 
No.

Name of Director DIN Original Date of 
appointment in the 

Company
1 Madhukar Balvantray Parekh 00180955 15/05/1986

2 Narendrakumar Kalyanji Parekh 00111518 15/05/1986

3 Ramdas Maneklal Gandhi 00029437 02/08/1988

4 Yasmin Jehangir Mogrelia 00112002 09/06/1998

5 Arun Dattatraya Mavinkurve 00631566 27/01/2009

6 Ajay Balvantray Parekh 00035317 28/01/2020

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment/continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility 
of the management of the Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on my 
verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the 
efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

FOR M. M. SHETH & CO.
(Company Secretaries)

M. M. SHETH 
(Prop)

	
FCS No. 1455, CP No. 729

PR No.: 1000/2020
Place	 : 	Mumbai
Date	 : 	10th May, 2021
UDIN	 : 	F001455C000269426
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INFORMATION FOR SHAREHOLDERS

1.	� Annual General Meeting:

	 Day, Date & Time	 : 	 Thursday, 12th August, 2021 at 12.00 noon

 	 Venue 				    : 	� Through Video Conferencing/Other Audio Visual Means, as permitted under 
Circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

2.	 Financial Year		  :	 1st April, 2020 to 31st March, 2021

3. 	 Book Closure Date	 : 	 6th August, 2021 to 12th August, 2021(both days inclusive)
							       (for shares held in physical form)		

4.	 Dividend Payment:

	� Dividend @ ` 3.75 per equity shares of ` 1 each amounting to ` 687.64 lacs will be paid to the 
eligible shareholders on or after 18th August, 2021, subject to the approval of the shareholders at the  
35th Annual General Meeting.

5.	 Listing of shares on Stock Exchanges:

	� The equity shares of the Company are listed on BSE Ltd. (BSE) and National Stock Exchange of India 
Ltd. (NSE). The Annual Listing fees for the Financial Year 2020-2021 has been paid to BSE & NSE. 

6.	  Stock Codes:	

Name of the Stock Exchange Stock Code

BSE 524129

NSE VINYLINDIA

7.	� Market Price Data:

	� During the Financial Year 2020-2021, the share prices for one equity share of face value of ` 1 each of 
the Company at BSE and NSE were as under:

Month & Year BSE  NSE
High (`) Low (`) High (`) Low(`)

April, 2020 69.45 40.90 69.90 39.30
May, 2020 119.80 55.60 119.80 56.60
June, 2020 114.60 87.70 114.00 88.10
July, 2020 98.00 77.15 97.50 78.70
August, 2020 117.85 78.10 117.80 77.60
September, 2020 114.40 89.00 114.40 93.00
October, 2020 113.00 94.65 113.40 94.00
November, 2020 111.50 95.05 111.35 100.00
December, 2020 144.00 102.00 132.45 102.65
January, 2021 131.50 116.60 131.25 116.50
February, 2021 143.00 118.35 143.10 118.70
March, 2021 141.55 111.25 141.45 114.05
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8. 	 Stock Performance:

	� During the Financial Year 2020-2021, the performance of the equity share of face value of ` 1 each of 
the Company in comparison to the BSE Sensex is given in the chart below:

9. 	 Registrar and Transfer Agents:

	�� TSR Darashaw Consultants Pvt. Ltd.
	 Unit: Vinyl Chemicals (India) Ltd., 
	 C-101, 1st Floor, 247 Park,
	 Lal Bahadur Shastri Marg, Vikhroli (West),
	 Mumbai 400 083
	 Tel: (022) 66568484
	 Fax: (022) 66568494
	 E-mail: csg-unit@tsrdarashaw.com
	 Website: www.tsrdarashaw.com

10. 	Share Transfer System: 

	 �The Company has delegated the authority to approve shares received for transfer in physical form to 
	� TSR Darashaw Consultants Pvt. Ltd. the R &T Agents and Share Transfer Committee comprising of 

the 	following Directors viz. Sarva Shri N.K. Parekh, R.M. Gandhi, A.D. Mavinkurve and M.B. Parekh.

	� Presently the share transfer documents are processed and the share certificates, duly transferred, are 
returned generally within a period of 15 days from the date of receipt, subject to the documents being 
valid and complete in all respects.

 

 80.00

 100.00

 120.00

 140.00

 160.00

 180.00

 200.00

 220.00

 240.00

 260.00

 280.00

 300.00

 320.00

 340.00

M
ar

-2
0

Ap
r-

20

M
ay

-2
0

Ju
n-

20

Ju
l-2

0

Au
g-

20

Se
p-

20

O
ct

-2
0

N
ov

-2
0

De
c-

20

Ja
n-

21

Fe
b-

21

M
a

r2
1

Adj.Vinyl 

Adj.Sensex 



62

Vinyl Chemicals (India) Ltd.

11. Distribution of Shareholding as on 31st March, 2021:

No. of Equity Shares held No. of Folios % No. of Shares %

Upto 5,000 28,255 99.42 67,75,177 36.95

5,001 – 10,000 96 0.34 7,00,334 3.82

10,001 – 20,000 30 0.11 4,39,543 2.40

20,001 – 30,000 15 0.05 3,63,758 1.98

30,001 – 40,000 7 0.02 2,45,459 1.34

40,001 – 50,000 6 0.02 2,68,373 1.46

50,001 – 1,00,000 5 0.02 3,35,696 1.83

1,00,001 and above 6 0.02 92,08,771 50.22

Total 28,420 100.00 1,83,37,111 100.00

No. of shareholders and shares in physical form 4,527 15.93 7,62,609 4.16

No. of beneficial owners and shares in electronic form 23,893 84.07 1,75,74,502 95.84

Total 28,420 100.00 1,83,37,111 100.00

12.	 Shareholding Pattern as on 31st March, 2021:

13.	 Dematerialisation of shares & liquidity:

	� As on 31st March, 2021, 1,75,74,502 (95.84%) equity shares of the Company were held in dematerialised 
form with National Securities Depository Ltd. (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Ltd. 
(CDSL). The Company's equity shares are required to be compulsorily traded in dematerialised form. 
The shares are available for dematerialisation under ISIN INE250B01029. Request for dematerialisation 
of shares are processed and generally confirmed within a period of 15 days of receipt, subject to the 
documents being valid and complete in all respects.

14. 	Employee Stock Option Scheme:

	 The Company does not have any Employees Stock Options Scheme.

15.	 Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants/Convertible Instruments:

	 The Company has no outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any Convertible instruments.

 

 
 
 

Indian Public & Bodies
Corporate 49.13 % 

UTI, Mutual Funds, Banks
& Insurance Companies

0.25% 

Promoters 50.62 %
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16. 	Commodity Price Risk/ Foreign Exchange Risk/ Hedging Activities:

	� The Company does not have exposure in the commodities market. The Company enters into currency 
hedging contracts by way of forward cover or zero cost options for import of VAM to overcome the risk 
of adverse exchange fluctuations.

17.	 Plant Locations: Nil

18. 	Address for Correspondence:
	� Registered Office:
	 Regent Chambers, 7th Floor, Jamnalal Bajaj Marg, 
	 208, Nariman Point, Mumbai 400 021.
	 Tel: (022) 22822708; Fax: (022) 22043969
	 E-mail: cs.vinylchemicals@pidilite.com; Website: www.vinylchemicals.com

19. 	Credit Rating:

	� The Company has obtained credit rating from India Ratings and Research Private Limited which has 
affirmed long term issuer rating at ‘IND A+’. There was no revision in the ratings during the year.

20. 	Corporate Secretarial/Investors’ Assistance Department:

	� The Company’s Secretarial Department headed by Shri P.C.Patel, President & Secretary is situated at 
the Registered Office of the Company as mentioned above. Investors may contact Shri P.C. Patel or 
Shri K.S. Krishnan, Additional Secretary at the Registered Office of the Company for any assistance 
they may need.

21. 	Disclosure under Regulation 39 read Schedule VI of the Listing Regulations:

	� Details of equity shares lying in Unclaimed Suspense Account of the Company as on 31st March, 2021 
are as under:

Particulars No. of Records No. of Equity Shares

No. of shareholders & outstanding shares at 
the beginning of the year 137 23,701

No. of requests received from shareholders for 
transfer of shares during the year 0 0

No. of shareholders & shares transferred to 
shareholders during the year 0 0

No. of Records & shares transferred to IEPF 
Authority during the year 137 23,701

No. of shareholders & outstanding shares at 
the end of the year 0 0

22. 	�Transfer of Shares to Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority:

	� Pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Investor Education 
and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 (the Rules), all 
unpaid or unclaimed dividends and shares in respect of which dividends are unpaid or unclaimed by 
the shareholders for seven consecutive years or more have been transferred by the Company to the 
Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) Authority. However, this requirement is not applicable 
to shares in respect of which there is an order of any Court, Tribunal or Statutory Authority restraining 
transfer of shares.
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	 �During the Financial Year 2020-2021, the Company has sent notices to the concerned shareholders 
and also published advertisement in newspapers seeking necessary action from the said shareholders 
in this regard. Subsequently, the Company has transferred unpaid/unclaimed dividends of ` 7,59,917 
and corresponding 53,638 shares pertaining to the Financial Year 2012-2013 to the IEPF Authority.The 
Company has uploaded the above details on its website www.vinylchemicals.com and also on website 
of IEPF Authority www.iepf.gov.in. The voting rights on the shares transferred to the IEPF Authority 
shall remain frozen till the rightful owner claims the shares from the IEPF Authority.

	� Shareholders whose unpaid/unclaimed dividends and shares have been transferred to IEPF are 
required to claim the same from the IEPF Authority by submitting an online application in the prescribed 
Form No. IEPF-5, which is available on the MCA website www.iepf.gov.in. The Company has appointed 
Shri P.C. Patel, President & Secretary, as the nodal Officer in this regard.
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